&

RHONDDA CYNON TAF

CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

RHONDDA CYNON TAF
COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

COMMITTEE SUMMONS

C Hanagan

Service Director of Democratic Services & Communication
Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council

2 Llys Cadwyn

Taff Street

Pontypridd

CF37 4TH

Meeting Contact: Hannah Jones - Council Business Unit, Democratic Services
(07385401954)

YOU ARE SUMMONED to a hybrid meeting of GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE to be held on MONDAY, 29TH APRIL, 2024 at 5.00 PM.

Non-Committee Members and Members of the public may request the facility to
address the Committee at their meetings on the business listed although facilitation
of this request is at the discretion of the Chair. It is kindly asked that such notification
is made to Democratic Services by Thursday, 25 April 2024 on the contact details
listed above, including stipulating whether the address will be in Welsh or English.

AGENDA Page
No’s

1. DECLARATION OF INTEREST

To receive disclosures of personal interest from Members in accordance
with the Code of Conduct

Note:

1. Members are requested to identify the item number and subject
matter that their interest relates to and signify the nature of the
personal interest: and

2. Where Members withdraw from a meeting as a consequence of
the disclosure of a prejudicial interest they must notify the
Chairman when they leave.

2. MINUTES

To receive the minutes of the previous meeting of the Governance and
Audit Committee held on 27t February 2024.



3. AUDIT WALES - ANNUAL AUDIT SUMMARY 2023

9-14
4. AUDIT WALES WORK PROGRAMME AND TIMETABLE
(QUARTERLY UPDATE TO 31 MARCH 2024)
15-30
5. COUNCIL PROGRESS UPDATE - IMPLEMENTATION OF
RECOMMENDATIONS REPORTED WITHIN THE AUDIT WALES
ANNUAL AUDIT SUMMARY 2023
31-42
6. WHISTLEBLOWING ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24
43 - 60
7. INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 2024/25
61 -84
8. INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2024/25
85 - 96
9. TO CONSIDER PASSING THE FOLLOWING UNDER-MENTIONED
RESOLUTION:
“That the press and public be excluded from the meeting under Section
100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972 (as amended) for the next
item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of
exempt information as defined in paragraph 14 of Part 4 of Schedule
12A of the Act.”
10. ANTI-FRAUD ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24
97 - 114

11. URGENT BUSINESS

To consider any items, which the Chairman, by reason of special
circumstances, is of the opinion should be considered at the meeting as
a matter of urgency.

For information: Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2023-2024



https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s47670/Scrutiny%20Annual%20Report.pdf?LLL=0

Circulation:-

County Borough Councillors: Councillor G Hopkins, Councillor M Maohoub (Vice-
Chair), Councillor S Rees, Councillor B Stephens, Councillor L A Tomkinson and
Councillor A J Ellis

Lay Members: Mr C Jones (Chair), Mr M Jehu and Mr J Roszkowski

Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg / This document is also available in Welsh



This page is intentionally left blank



_.,/ Agenda ltem 2
G

RHONDDA CYNON TAF
L —
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNCIL

Minutes of the virtual meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee held on Tuesday, 27
February 2024 at 5.00pm.

This meeting was record, details of which can be accessed here

Chair present:
Mr C Jones (Chair)

County Borough Councillors — The following Committee Members were present:
Councillor M Maohoub Councillor S Rees
Councillor B Stephens Councillor L A Tomkinson
Councillor A J Ellis Mr M Jehu
Mr J Roszkowski
Officers in attendance
Mr A Wilkins, Director of Legal Services and Democratic Services
Mr C Hanagan, Service Director of Democratic Services & Communication
Mr P Griffiths, Service Director — Finance & Improvement Services
Mr A Wathan, Head of Regional Audit Service
Ms L Cumpston, Group Audit Manager
Mr | Phillips - Audit Wales
A Clemens - Audit Wales
Apologies for absence

Councillor G Hopkins

52 Welcome and Apology

The Chair welcomed attendees to the meeting and an apology for absence was
received from County Borough Councillor G. Hopkins.

The Chair took the opportunity to inform the Committee that he had recently
visited the Council’'s new Headquarters in Pontypridd and that he looked forward
to holding a hybrid meeting there in the future.

53 Declaration of Interest
In accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, there were no declarations
made pertaining to the agenda.

54 Minutes

It was RESOLVED to approve the minutes of the meeting of the Governance
and Audit Committee held on 24t January 2024 as an accurate record subject

Page 5


https://rctcbc.public-i.tv/core/portal/home

55

56

57

to the following:
¢ An apology for absence was received from Mr M. Jehu.

Matters Arising

Minute 50 - The Council's Finalised Annual Self-Assessment 2022/23
incorporating the Council's Corporate Performance Report - Verbal
Update: It was noted that a link to the final report, which was reported to the full

Council meeting on 17th January 2024, had been circulated to Members via
email on 51 February 2024.

Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable (Quarterly update to 31
December 2023) - Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council

Audit Wales provided the Committee with the quarterly work programme update
to 315t December 2023.

The report before Members covered the position for the financial audit work,
performance audit work, Local Government national studies planned / in
progress, Estyn and Care Inspectorate Wales work, Audit Wales national reports
and other outputs published since December 2022 (and also work in progress /
planned work) and Good Practice Exchange events and resources.

The Chair thanked Audit Wales for the information report and the Governance
and Audit Committee RESOLVED:
1. To note the update.

Learning and Development - External Audit

With the aid of a PowerPoint presentation, the Audit Wales officer provided
introductory information in respect of the Auditor General for Wales and Audit
Wales.

The presentation set out the legislative basis for the work of Audit Wales and
provided an overview of the local financial and performance audit work.

Members were provided with information in respect of the key annual reports
and assurance arrangements along with the recent work undertaken in Rhondda
Cynon Taf.

Audit Wales advised that the role of a Governance and Audit Committee was to
assure itself that there are arrangements in place within the Council to monitor
and evaluate progress against agreed recommendations reported by Audit
Wales and to hold the Executive and Council officers to account to ensure that
recommendations are implemented.

One Member sought clarity on the concept of materiality. It was explained by
Audit Wales that materiality was effectively a threshold that Audit Wales take into
account when auditing financial statements to provide perspective and
determine whether the financial statements provide a fair position. It was also
explained that from an audit perspective, it is not possible to audit to the penny

Page 6



58

and the materiality concept recognises this.

One Member took the opportunity to thank Audit Wales for the informative
update and sought clarity on the process and the action that would be taken if
the auditors were to find that there had been a mismanagement of taxpayers’
money. Audit Wales spoke of its higher profile ‘public interest’ reporting process,
which would draw attention to a particular matter in a clear way. Furthermore, it
was explained that if a matter was particularly serious in nature, Audit Wales can
make statutory recommendations, which would require a Local Authority to
convene a full Council meeting within a month of receiving the recommendations
to ensure formal consideration is given to the issue.

The Chair thanked Audit Wales for the detailed presentation and the
Governance and Audit Committee RESOLVED:
1. To note the update.

Strategic Risk Register Update

The Service Director of Finance and Improvement Services provided the
Governance and Audit Committee with the latest Strategic Risk Register for the
2023/24 financial year in line with its role to review and scrutinise the Council’s
risk management arrangements.

The Service Director reminded Members that in line with the Committee’s Terms
of Reference, the 12th October 2023 Governance and Audit Committee received
a ‘Risk Management Strategy and Strategic Risk Register Update’ that covered
the role of the Committee in respect of risk management and the arrangements
in place to enable the Committee to discharge its responsibilities in this regard;
an updated Risk Management Strategy; and updated Strategic Risk Register as

at 30! June 2023. The Service Director added that as part of the update, the
Committee’s role in reviewing and scrutinising the Council’s risk management
arrangements included keeping up-to-date with its risk profile and also the
effectiveness of risk management actions via review of the Strategic Risk
Reqgister.

Members’ attention was drawn to the Council’s latest Strategic Risk Register,
which was attached as Appendix 1 to the report. The Service Director provided
an overview of the Strategic Risk Register noting that it contained 17 strategic
risks, 11 of which were categorised as high risk and 6 medium risk, and all of
which had been allocated a Risk Lead Officer to manage and co-ordinate the
risk mitigation actions and controls. The Service Director went on to indicate that
all Risk Lead Officers were either a member of the Council’s Senior Leadership
Team or a Chief Officer of the Council; the Strategic Risk Register is reported to
the Senior Leadership Team for regular review and challenge; and the Register
is incorporated into the Council's quarterly performance reports that are
considered by the Council’'s Cabinet and, thereafter, the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.

One Member was assured by the adequacy of the risk management framework
and questioned how emerging risks, which were not included on the Strategic
Risk Register, are monitored. The Service Director informed Members that the
Council’s new Corporate Plan was in the process of being developed and, once
approved, would set out the Council’s priorities for the period 2024-2030 and be
a key document in informing future strategic risks facing the organisation. The

Page 7


https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s43207/Report.pdf?LLL=0

59

Service Director added that underpinning the Corporate Plan are individual
service delivery planning arrangements that identify and manage emerging risks,
and depending on their significance, would be considered for inclusion within the
Strategic Risk Register. The Service Director also emphasised the Council’s
approach of ensuring that the risks included on the Strategic Risk Register are
those that would have the most significant impact on the Council. The Service
Director went on to reference the work undertaken by Audit Wales, that identifies
key risks and actions that need to be considered by the Council as part of its
forward planning arrangements. The Member was satisfied with the Service
Director’s response and supported the position for everyday risks to not be
included within the Strategic Risk Register.

The Governance and Audit Committee RESOLVED:
1. To note the Council’s latest Strategic Risk Register for the 2023/24
financial year; and
2. To review the Strategic Risk Register and determine whether further
updates on specific Strategic Risks are required and subsequently
reported to the Committee.

Internal Audit Service 2024/25 - Verbal Update

The Service Director of Finance and Improvement Services referred to the 19th
December 2023 Governance and Audit Committee meeting where Members

were informed that further to the 181 December 2023 Cabinet decision to bring
back in-house the Internal Audit Service, the Committee would be kept up-to-
date with the associated transition arrangements.

The Service Director advised that a transition plan had been put in place and
was being progressed with colleagues from the Regional Internal Audit Service.

Members were informed that positive progress was being made in terms of
TUPE proceedings, with eligible staff due to be transferred back to Rhondda

Cynon Taf Council from 17th April 2024.

In terms of the operational processes within the transition plan, specifically
around the relevant internal audit information currently held within the Regional
Service’s systems, assurance was provided that work is progressing to transfer
the information to Rhondda Cynon Taf. The Service Director also assured
Members that the 2024/25 Internal Audit Plan was in the process of being
drafted and would be reported to the Governance and Audit Committee early in
the next financial year.

The Chair thanked the Service Director for the update and it was RESOLVED:
1. To note the update.

This meeting closed at 5.52 pm Mr C Jones

Page 8

Chair.



Agenda Iltem 3

Archwilio Cymru
Audit Wales

Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council
Annual Audit Summary 2023

This is our audit summary for Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council.
It shows the work completed since the last Annual Audit Summary,

which was issued in March 2023. Our audit summary forms part of

the Auditor General for Wales' duties.

More information about these duties can be found on our website.

About the Council

Some of the services the Council provides
B: =2 5 i ® 8. &

Key facts

The Council is made up of 75 councillors who represent the following political parties:
» Labour 58

» Plaid Cymru 8

* Independent 6

¢  Conservatives 2

e Labour and co-operative 1

The Council spent £618.7 million on providing services' during 2022-232,

T We define spending on services as the cost of services charged to the general fund from the
Expenditure Funding Analysis, less any Housing Revenue Account cost of services, plus
precepts, levies and debt interest.

2 Source: 2022-23 Statement of Accounts

Page 9



Key facts

As at 31 March 2023, the Council had £225.2 million of useable financial reserves?.
This is equivalent to 36.4% of the Council's annual spending on services*.

Rhondda Cynon Taf has 18% of its 154 areas considered to be within the most deprived 10% of
areas in Wales, this is the fourth highest of the 22 unitary councils in Wales®.

The population of Rhondda Cynon Taf is projected to increase by 4% between 2023 and 2043
from 243,400 to 254,100, including a 2% decrease in the number of children, a 2% increase in
the number of the working-age population and a 19% increase in the number of people aged 65
and over®.

The Auditor General's duties

We completed work during 2022-23 to meet the following
duties

o Audit of Accounts

Each year, the Auditor General audits the Council’s financial statements to make sure
that public money is being properly accounted for.

o Value for money

The Auditor General examines whether the Council has put in place arrangements to
get value for money for the resources it uses, and he has to be satisfied that it has done
this.

e Sustainable development principle

Public bodies need to comply with the sustainable development principle when setting
and taking steps to meet their well-being objectives. The Auditor General must assess
the extent to which they are doing this.

¥ We define useable financial reserves as reserves usable for revenue costs, where the
purpose is not protected by law. This is the total of the general fund, earmarked reserves, and
schools’ balances. It excludes Housing Revenue Account reserves, capital receipts, and
capital grants unapplied.

4 Source: 2022-23 Statement of Accounts
5 An area in this context is defined as a ‘Lower Super Output Area’. Source: Stats Wales
6 Source: Stats Wales, Population Projections

Page 10



What we found

Audit of Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council’s 2022-
23 Accounts

To meet the Auditor General’s duties we complete specific
projects, but we also rely on other audit work, and the work
of regulators such as Care Inspectorate Wales and Estyn

ﬂ (the education inspectorate). We take the findings of our
audit work into account when assessing whether the Council
has put in place arrangements to secure value for money.
Our findings and conclusions are summarised below.

Each year we audit the Council's financial statements.

For 2022-23:

the draft statements were presented for audit on 30 June 2023. This was before the
deadline of 31 July 2023 set by the Welsh Government.

the quality of the draft statements presented for audit was generally good.

the Auditor General gave an unqualified true and fair opinion on the Authority’s financial
statements on 30 November, in line with the deadline agreed with the Welsh

Government of 30 November 2023. The audit was delivered later than in previous years
mainly due to the impact of new auditing standard requirements. These were covered in
our audit plan considered by the Governance and Audit Committee on 12 October 2023.

the Authority’s Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report were prepared in
line with the CIPFA Code and relevant guidance. They were also consistent with the
financial statements prepared by the Authority and with our knowledge of the Authority.

a number of changes were made to the Authority's financial statements arising from our
audit work, which were reported to the Council in our Audit of Financial Statements
Report in November 2023.

in addition to the Auditor General’s responsibilities for auditing the Authority's financial
statements, he also has responsibility for the certification of a number of grant claims
and returns. Our work to date has not identified any significant issues.

the Auditor General issued the certificate confirming that the audit of accounts for 2022-
23 has been completed.

Page 11



Assurance and risk assessment review

We reviewed the arrangements the Council has put in place to secure value for money in the
use of its resources. We produced the following reports from our assurance and risk
assessment work:

o use of performance information —service user perspective and outcomes — we looked at
the service user perspective and outcome data provided to members and senior
officers, and how this information is used. We found that performance information
provided to senior leaders does not generally enable them to understand the service
user perspective and the outcomes of the Council's activities.

Digital Strategy

During 2022-23, we examined the Council’s strategic approach to digital, and specifically the
extent to which this has been developed in accordance with the sustainable development
principle; and that it will help to secure value for money in the use of the Council's resources.
This project is currently at draft report stage.

Page 12



Other inspectorates

We also took into account the reports of Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW) and Estyn, as well as
any subsequent actions taken by the Council in response.

Planned work for 2023-24

We also looked at the key challenges and opportunities facing the Council. These could have
an effect on the Council’'s ability to meet its legal obligations in relation to the sustainable
development principle and the use of its resources.

Our planned work for 2023-24 includes:

» Assurance and risk assessment which is a consideration of core arrangements and
services

+ Thematic review — financial sustainability

¢ Thematic review — commissioning

» Local project — the application of the sustainable development principle — a project to gain
assurance that the Council has proper arrangements in place to drive the application of
the sustainable development principle across the organisation

Page 13



The Auditor General is independent of government and was appointed by Her Majesty the Queen.
The Auditor General undertakes his work using staff and other resources provided by the Wales
Audit Office, which is a statutory board established for that purpose and to monitor and advise the
Auditor General. The Wales Audit Office is held to account by the Senedd.

The Auditor General audits local government bodies in Wales, including unitary authorities, police,
fire and rescue authorities, national parks, and community councils. He also conducts local
government value for money studies, assesses compliance with the remaining requirements of the
Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 and may undertake special inspections under the Local
Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021,

Beyond local government, the Auditor General is the external auditor of the Welsh Government
and its sponsored and related public bodies, the Senedd Commission, and National Health
Service bodies in Wales.

Audit Wales is the non-statutory collective name for the Auditor General for Wales and the
Wales Audit Office, which are separate legal entities with their own legal functions, as described
above. Audit Wales is not a legal entity.

We welcome correspondence and telephone calls in Welsh and English. Corresponding in Welsh
will not lead to delay. Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a galwadau ffon yn Gymraeg a Saesneg. Ni
fydd gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

This document is also available in Welsh.

Page 14



Archwilio Cymru
Audit Wales

Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable —
Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council

Quarterly Update: 31 March 2024

Annual Audit Summary

accounts

Description Timetable Status
A report summarising completed audit work since the Spring 2024 Final report
last Annual Audit Summary, which was issued in March issued.
2023.

Financial Audit work
Description Scope Timetable Status
Audit of the Council Statement of Accounts By 30 Completed 30
Council's 2022-23 November November
statement of 2023 2023
accounts
Audit of the Pension Pension Fund Account By 30 Completed 30
Fund's 2022-23 Movember MNovember
statement of 2023 2023

Audit of the 2022-23
statement of
accounts for the
following joint
committees and
charities

Liwydcoed Crematorium
CSEC

Welsh Church Act (Rhondda
Cynon Taf, Bridgend, Merthyr
Tydfil)

By 31 January
2024

Completed 19
January 2024

Page 1 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable — Rhondda Cynon Taf County
Borough Council

Page 15



Description Scope Timetable Status
Audit of various * Housing Benefit Subsidy By 30 April = Complete
2022-23 grant « Teachers' Pensions Return « Complete
PRIMITLS « NNDR Return « Compiete
¢« Two Pooled Budgets « Ongoing
« SCW Workforce Development = Ongoing
Plan return
Performance Audit work

2022-23 Scope Timetable Status
Performance
Audit work
Assurance and Project to identify the level of audit
Risk assurance and/or where further
Assessment audit work may be required In

future years in relation to risks to

the Council putting in place proper

arrangements o secure value for

money in the use of resources and

acting in accordance with the

sustainable development principle.

|
= Financial position Ongoing Ongoing

Page 2 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable — Rhondda Cynon Taf County

Borough Council

Page 16

monitoring of

financial position



2022-23 Scope Timetable Status
Performance
Audit work
« Capital programme September — Audit Wales will
management December 2023 not undertake
detailed work at
all councils as
part of our 2022-
23 work
programme. We
intend to
undertake a local
government
study looking at
capital planning
in local
govamment
commencing in
2024,
« Use of performance February — Report published
information — with a focus on September 2023
service user feedback and
outcomes
« A consideration of other core April 2022 - Complete
arrangements and services March 2023

Page 3 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable — Rhandda Cynon Taf County

Borough Council

Page 17



2022-23 Scope Timetable Status
Performance
Audit work
Thematic A cross-sector review focusing on August 2022 — Reporting from
Review — the flow of patients out of hospital. October 2023 February 2024
Unscheduled This review will consider how the onward.
Care Council is working with its partners

to address the risks associated with

the provision of social care to

support hospital discharge, as well

as prevenl hospital admission. The

work will also consider what steps

are being taken to provide medium

to longer-term solutions.
Thematic review A review of councils’ strateqic January — Draft report
— Digital approach to digital, and the extent September. issued

to which this has been developed

in accordance with the sustainabla

development principle; and that it

will help to secure value for money

in the use of councils’ resources.
2023-24 Scope Timetable Status
Performance
Audit work
Assurance and Project to identify the level of audil Ongoing Ongoing

Risk
Assessment

assurance and/er where further audit
work may be required In future years
in relation lo risks to the Council

putting in place proper arrangements
to secure value for money in the use

of resources and acting in accordance

with the sustainable development
principle.

Page 4 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable — Rhandda Cynon Taf County
Borough Council

Page 18



2023-24 Scope Timetable Status
Performance
Audit work
Thematic review A review focusing on how councils’ March — Timing of
- arrangements for commissioning apply December fieldwork TBC
commissioning value for money considerations and 2024

the sustainable development principle.
Thematic review A review of councils’ financial March = July Work
— Financial sustainability including a focus on the 2024 underway
Sustainability actions, plans and arrangements to

bridge funding gaps and address

financial pressures over the medium

term.
Local project — A project to consider whether the March — June Fieldwork
sustainable Council has effective arrangements for 2024 complete

development
principle

ensuring that service areas are
applying the sustainable development
principle.

Page 5 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable — Rhandda Cynon Taf County

Borough Council

Page 19




Local government national studies planned/in progress

Study Scope Timetable Status Fieldwork
planned at
Rhondda Cynon
Taf County
Borough
Council
Governance of Review of November 2022 Report Mo
special systems and — September drafting —
purpose effectivenass of 2023 publication
authorities — governance due April
National Parks 2024,
Governance in Review of September 2023 Fieldwork Mo
Fire and systems and — August 2024 underway,
Rescue effectivenass of Publication
Authorities governance due July
2024,
Homelessness Examining haow Ta be confirmed Scoping To be confirmed
services are
working together
to progress the
response o
homelessness
Capital Examining To be confirmed Mot started To be confirmed
Planning in whether capital
Local investment in the
Government asset base in local
government is
able to keep pace
with demand

Page 6 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable — Rhandda Cynon Taf County
Borough Council

Page 20



Study Scope Timetable | Status Fieldwork

planned at
Rhondda Cynon
Taf County
Borough
Council
Financial Examining the To be confirmed Mot started To be confirmed
constraints/ potential impacts
discretionary and councils'
local decision making
government processes in the
services context of the
sustainable
development
principle,
Estyn

Our link inspectors are continuing to work with Torfaen as part of our follow-up process for an
authority causing significant concern. Conwy local government education service report was published
on 18 January 2024, and we highlighted strong practice in the way the local authority worked across
ts service areas to provide integrated support for vulnerable young people.

Wa piloted a few new approaches to our inspection arrangements in the Vale of Glamorgan in the
week beginning 11 March. We also inspacted the Vale of Glamorgan's youth work in the week
beginning 19 February 2024, and the findings of that inspection informed the evidence base for the
LGES inspection. Both the youth and the LGES reports will be published on 30 April. During the
spring term, Estyn link inspectors contributed to the assurance and risk workshops with local
authorities across Wales.

During the summer term, we will be piloting our enhanced link visits in two local authorities. The visits
will involve three link inspectors visiting a local authority for two days, focusing on one or two specific
aspects of the local authority's work. The output is a letter to the Chief Executive Officers which is
published on our website. We will alzo be inspecting Ceredigion and Caerphilly local government
education services. We will be carrying out field work in all local authorities on the Implementation of
the Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal [Wales] Act 2018 in non-maintained settings,
primary and secondary schools, and all-age schools Year 2. This review follows on from the year 1
review of the implementation of the ALNET Act in schools, which was published in September 2023.

Page 7 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable — Rhandda Cynon Taf County
Borough Council

Page 21



Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW)

CIW planned Scope Timetable Status
work 2023-25
Thematic
reviews
Community Working jointly with HIW we completed an 2024-25 Delivery
Learning assurance check in Rhondda Cynon Taf
Disability Team focusing on Community Learning Disability
(CLDT) Teams (CLDT).
We are planning our second CLDT March 2024 Planning
assurance check in Blaenau Gwent.
National Purpose of the review January Published
Review of Care i 2024
Bianning for To provide ?xternal scrutiny, asgurance and
Children and to prgmate :mr.-_muament _regardmg tha
Y quality of practice in relation to the care
oung People ; :
Subject to the planning for Ghl|1':|!"E_'.'I"I and young people
Public Law suibject to the public law outline pre-
Outline Pre- PragERdings.
proceedings To consider the extent to which practice has
progressed since the publication of both the
CIW ‘Mational Review of care planning for
children and young people subject to public
law outline pre-proceedings’ and the
publication of the PLO working group report
2021 including best practice guidance.
Deprivation of The 2021-22 report was published on 28 February Published
Liberty February 2024 Deprivation of Liberty 2024
Safeguards Safeguards (DoLS) annual monitoring report
Annual 2022-23
Maonitoring
Report for
Health and
Social Care
2022-23

Page B of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable — Rhandda Cynon Taf County
Borough Council

Page 22



CIW planned
wark 2023-25

Scope

Timetable

Status

Joint
Inspection
Child
Protection

Arrangements

(JICPA)

Wa will complete a further two multi-agency
joint inspections in total.

The findings following Denbighshire County
Council have been published — Joini

Arrangements (JICPA): Denbighshire 2023

The findings following Bridgend County
Borough Council have been published —
Joint Inspectorate Review of Child Protection

Arrangements (JICPA): Bridgend 2023

The findings from Powys County Council
have been published — Joint Inspectorate
Review of Child Protection Arrangements
(JICPA): Powys 2023

Our findings from the Cardiff JICPA will be
published shortly,

We will publish a national report in early
summer 2024,

April 2023
- April
2024

HAwaiting
publication

July 2024

Page 9 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable — Rhandda Cynon Taf County

Borough Council

Page 23

Delivery

Awaiting
publication

Planning



CIW planned Scope Timetable Status
work 2023-25
Performance We continue to inspect Local Authorities in Ongoing Ongoing
review of Local line with our updated Code of Practice for
Authorities our local authority inspection activity

How we inspect local authority services and

CAFCASS Cymru

We published our report for Flintshire County

Council children and adult services in

February 2024 — Inspection report for

Flintshire County Council's adults and

children’s services published

We compieted a Performance Evaluation

Inspection in Monmouthshire County Council

between February and March. We will

publish our report shortly.
Her Majesty's We supported the delivery of HMIP's Youth Awaiting Awaiting
Inspectorate of Offending Services Inspection in publication publication
Probation - Denbighshire and Conwy. The report will be
Youth published shortly
Offending
Inspection

Page 10 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable — Rhendda Cynon Tal County

Borough Council

Page 24




Audit Wales national reports and other outputs published
since March 2023

Report title Publication date and
link to report

Supporting Ukrainians in Wales March 2024

From firefighting to future-proofing — the challenge for Welsh public February 2024

services

Belsi Cadwaladr University Health Board — board effectivenass fullow-up February 2024

Local Government Financial Sustainability Data tool update uses data January 2024
from the draft 2022-23 accounts

Planning for sustainable development — Brownfield regeneration January 2024
Corporate Joint Committees — commentary on their progress November 2023
Govermance arrangements relating to an employment dispute al November 2023

Amgueddfa Cymru — National Museum Wales

Failures In financial management and governance and losses incurred — November 2023
Harlech Community Council

Futting out the false alarms: Fire and Rescue Authorities' responses to October 2023
Unwanted Fire Signals

Covering teachers’ absence — follow-up (letter to the Public Accounts October 2023
and Public Administration Committes)

MHS workforce — data briefing September 2023

Page 11 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable — Rhendda Cynon Tal County
Borough Council

Page 25



Report title Publication date and
link to report
Income Diversification for National Park Authorities in Wales September 2023
Approaches to achieving net zero across the UK September 2023
Springing Forward: Lessons learnt from our waork on workforce and September 2023
assets (in local government)
NHS finances data tool — to 31 March 2023 September 2023
Public interest reports — Ammanford Town Council and Llanferres September 2023
Community Council
Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board - Quality Governance August 2023
Ammangements Joint Review Follow-up
‘Cracks in the Foundations' — Building Safety in Wales August 2023
Maximising EU funding — the Structural Funds Programme and the Rural June 2023
Development Programme

Page 12 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable — Rhendda Cynon Tal County
Borough Council

Page 26



Audit Wales national reports and other outputs (work in
progress/planned)’:?

Title Indicative publication date
Findings from community pharmacy data matching pilot April 2024

A465 Section 2 — update May 2024

Financial management and govemance in town and May/June 2024

community councils

Local government digital strategy review — national June 2024
summary

Local government use of performance information, June 2024
oulcomes and service user perspective — national

summary

Affordable housing Summer 2024
Active travel Summer 2024
MNHS finances data tool — to 31 March 2024 Summer 2024

"'We will continue to keep our plans under constant review, taking account of the evolving
external envircnment, our audit priorities, the context of our own resourcing and the
capacity of audited bodies to engage with us. Follow-up work could also lead to other
outputs, as may other local audit werk where we consider there is merit in a national
summary output of some kind.

2We have also published a paper on our website — Our work programme for 2023-2026 —
that provides additional detail about our national work (including local thematic reviews).
In addition to new work that we will be taking forward in 2023-24, the paper includes
details about indicative topics for work to start in 2024-24 or 2025-26. We have recently
identified plans for new areas of work to start during 2024-25 in our Annual Plan 2024-25.

Page 13 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable — Rhendda Cynon Tal County
Borough Council

Page 27



Title

Indicative publication date

NHS workforce planning (national messages)

Summer 2024

Cancer services

Late summer 2024

Findings from GP registration data matching pilot

Late summer 2024

Mational Fraud [nitiative — biennial report

Autumn 2024

Addressing biodiversity decline (pan-public sector and at
Matural Resources Wales)

Pan-public sector review — autumn
2024

NRW to be confirmed (scoping)

Welsh Government capital and infrastructure investment

Late autumn 2024

Findings from sustainable development examinations
(statutory report under the WFG Act)

By early May 2025

The senior public service

Scoping underway, delivery planned
early summer

Challenges for the cultural sector

To be confirmed (scoping)

Rebalancing care and support

To be confirmed (scoping)

Tackling NHS waiting lists (local audit work at health
boards)

To be confirmed (local work at each
Health Board starting in May 2024)

Access to education for children with Additional Learning
Needs

To be confirmed (scoping)

Page 14 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable — Rhendda Cynon Tal County
Borough Council

Page 28



Title

Indicative publication date

Velindre Cancer Centre

To be confirmed (scoping)

Further and higher education funding and oversight -
Commission for Tertiary Education and Research

Ta be confirmed (scoping)

Support for business

Ta be confirmed (starting in 2024-25)

Support for bus and rail services

To be confirmed (starting in 2024-25)

Progress with investmeant in school and college buildings
through the Sustainable Communities for Learning
Programme

To be confirmed (starting in 2024-25)

NHS bodies' approaches to digital transformation (local
audit work)

To be confirmed (starting in 2024-25)

Good Practice Exchange events and resources

Title Link to resource

Audit Committees. What does good look like?'. Research and Research and

Development work to understand the broad audit committee landscape Development work

across all sectors in Wales. Outputs to support Good Practice Exchange September —

events and potential future audit work, December 2023
Good Practice Event
Spring 2024

Page 15 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable — Rhendda Cynon Tal County

Borough Council

Page 29



Title

Link to resource

Audit Committees: Effective practices and a positive impact

Good governance arrangements are a critical part of how public service
organisations function effectively and deliver value for moneay services for
the citizens and communities of Wales. Audit Committees are one of the
foundation stones that support good govermnance. With significant current
and future pressures on public seclor finances, there is an increasing
need for effective practices and a positive impact. Audit Commitiees play
a vital role in this. This event provides an opportunity to share
experiences, learn, and network with peers across the public sector in
Wales.

Reqgister for this event
— Audit Committees:
;';r:vglut“l;fe impact -
Cardiff City Stadium,
Wed 22 May 2024 10

am to 3:30 pm
{tickettailor.com)

The Good Practice Exchange — Our yearly round up of events and
resources

December 2023

Page 16 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable — Rhendda Cynon Tal County
Borough Council

Page 30



Agenda Iltem 5

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
MUNICIPAL YEAR 2023/24

GOVERNANCE AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM 5
29t APRIL 2024
REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR COUNCIL PROGRESS UPDATE -
FOR DEMOCRATIC SERVICES AND IMPLEMENTATION OF
COMMUNICATION RECOMMENDATIONS
REPORTED WITHIN THE AUDIT
WALES ANNUAL AUDIT
SUMMARY 2023

Author: Lesley Lawson (Performance Manager)

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To provide the Governance and Audit Committee with a progress update on the
implementation of recommendations, as set out in the reports referenced in the
Audit Wales Annual Audit Summary 2023.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that Members:

2.1 Note the position statement of progress made by the Council to implement
recommendations set out in the reports referenced in the Audit Wales Annual
Audit Summary 2023 and to consider the adequacy of the progress made to
date.

2.2  Consider whether there are any matters of a governance, internal control or risk
management nature that require further action or attention by the Governance
and Audit Committee.

2.3  Consider whether there are any matters of a performance nature that require
referral to the Council’'s Scrutiny Committees.

Page 31



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

ARRANGEMENTS FOR MONITORING AUDIT WALES
RECOMMENDATIONS

The Council recognises the important role that Audit Wales plays in supporting
ongoing improvement to governance and service delivery through, for example,
undertaking specific review work across services and the issuing of reports and
accompanying recommendations, where required.

Further to receipt of finalised Audit Wales reports in relation to the local
authority or national reports that relate to local government, these are reported
to the Council’s Governance and Audit Committee to provide assurance on the
arrangements in place to monitor progress and also set out the progress made
to implement recommendations.

Governance and Audit Committee

The Terms of Reference of the Council’'s Governance and Audit Committee
include the following responsibilities in relation to reports from the Council’s
External Auditor (for the purposes of this report the External Auditor being Audit
Wales):

e Point O - ‘To receive and consider reports of the External Auditor in relation
to matters of financial probity and corporate governance and providing the
opportunity for direct discussion with the auditor(s) on these’; and

e Point P - ‘Consider national reports, for example, from Audit Wales, of
relevance to the work of the Authority’.

To discharge the above requirements, the Council’'s Governance and Audit
Committee has responsibility for:

e Seeking independent assurance around the arrangements in place within
the Council to monitor / evaluate progress against recommendations
reported by Audit Wales; and

¢ Determining whether there are any matters of a governance, internal control
or risk management nature that require further action or attention.

As part of discharging its Terms of Reference, the Governance and Audit
Committee should also take account of the conclusions and findings from each
Audit Wales report when forming an opinion on the adequacy of internal
control/governance arrangements in place.

In addition to the above, where the Governance and Audit Committee considers
there are performance related matters that require further review, it is able to
refer these to the designated Scrutiny Committee for consideration and
feedback, as deemed appropriate. Similarly, where a Scrutiny Committee in
delivering its agreed work programme determines there are matters of a
governance, internal control or risk management nature that require further
review, it is also able to refer these to the Governance and Audit Committee for
consideration.

Page 32



411

41.2

41.3

4.2

4.3

5.1

AUDIT WALES REPORTS

The Audit Wales Annual Audit Summary 2023, being considered as a separate
item on the meeting agenda, covers the work completed by Audit Wales since
the Annual Audit Summary 2022 (issued March 2023), as set out below.

Audit of Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council’'s 2022-23
Accounts — The 2022/23 Accounts were approved by full Council on 29th
November 2023 and the Auditor General gave an unqualified true and fair
opinion on the Council’s financial statements on 30 November 2023, in line with
the deadline agreed by Welsh Government.

Assurance and Risk Assessment: A review of the Council’s arrangements
to secure value for money in the use of resources included a report in
respect of ‘the use of performance information — service user perspective
and outcomes’ — the Audit Wales report was presented to the 24th January
2024 Governance and Audit Committee alongside the actions to be taken by
the Council to implement the recommendations.

Local Project - Digital Strategy — the Council’s strategic approach to
digital and the extent it has been develop in accordance with SD principle
and will help secure value for money. This project is currently at draft report
stage.

As part of on-going monitoring arrangements, Council Officers have prepared
a further progress update in respect of 4.1.2 and is set out at Appendix 1. The
Governance and Audit Committee is requested to review the progress update
and alongside Members own lines of enquiry:

e Consider whether there are any matters of a governance, internal control
or risk management nature that require further action or attention; and

e Consider whether there are any matters of a performance nature that
require review by the Council’s Scrutiny Committees.

Subject to Members’ consideration of the update, on-going monitoring will be
undertaken as part of operational Service Delivery Plan arrangements, noting
that should the Committee request further specific information in the future on
this area, this will be incorporated into the Committee’s workplan.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS AND SOCIO-ECONOMIC
DUTY

There are no equality and diversity or socio-economic duty implications as a
result of the recommendations set out in the report.

Page 33


https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=163&MId=50004653&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=163&MId=50004653&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=149&MId=50004680&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=149&MId=50004680&Ver=4&LLL=0

9.1

10.
10.1

CONSULTATION, ENGAGEMENT AND INVOLVEMENT

There are no consultation implications as a result of the recommendations set
out in the report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)

There are no financial implications as a result of the recommendations set out
in the report.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED

Regular reporting of external audit reports to the Governance and Audit
Committee ensures compliance with the CIPFA/SOLACE ‘Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government: Framework 2016’ and the Committee’s
Terms of Reference, and is in line with the Local Government and Elections
(Wales) Act 2021.

LINKS TO CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE WELL-
BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS (WALES) ACT

The Governance and Audit Committee’s role in overseeing the Council’'s
arrangements to monitor/evaluate progress against recommendations reported
by Audit Wales aims to support the delivery of all priorities contained within the
Council’'s Corporate Plan and in doing so aligns with the Sustainable
Development principles as set out within the Well-being of Future Generations
Act.

CONCLUSIONS

Audit Wales reports play an important role in supporting on-going improvement
to the Council’s governance and service delivery arrangements. As part of this
process, the Council utilises its Governance and Audit Committee, in line with
the Terms of Reference, to oversee the arrangements in place and monitor the
progress made by Council Services to implement recommendations reported
by Audit Wales.

Page 34



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972

as amended by
THE ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT, 1985
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

29t April 2024

COUNCIL PROGRESS UPDATE - IMPLEMENTATION OF RECOMMENDATIONS
REPORTED WITHIN THE AUDIT WALES ANNUAL AUDIT SUMMARY 2023

REPORT OF: Service Director for Democratic Services and Communication

Author: Lesley Lawson

Contact Officer: Lesley Lawson

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Audit Wales — Use of Performance Information: Service User Perspective and Outcomes

Publicly available September 2023 - reported to Governance and Audit Committee 24 January 2024

What are we trying to | Clear, robust and timely information that gives assurance to elected Members and residents that we are delivering
achieve, the outcome | what we set out to achieve and putting residents at the centre of what we do.

Why we need to do it: | The Council collects and uses a raft of information from across its services and a range of platforms to evidence
and compare performance and to hold services to account. Part of the suite of information is resident feedback.
The Council has a good track record of engaging with communities to inform decisions. However, in recent years
we have not routinely sought the information that has enable the Council to test whether its work is making the
difference it intended. Whilst the Corporate Plan was clear about the intended outcomes in the priorities set in
2020, the focus on response to floods and the pandemic has impacted the business processes that would normally
provide a range of evidence in respect of Service User Perspective and Outcomes.

-
o)
Q
o
w
~ Recommendation Actions To Address The Progress Update Timescale Responsible
Recommendation Officer
R1 The Council should | The Council will use its existing | The Council continues to use its existing
strengthen the | arrangements and the range of | arrangements and the range of service
perspective of the service | service user feedback captured | user feedback captured to help assess
user: to help assess how services | how services and policies are meeting
The council should | and policies are meeting the | the needs of service users, with senior

strengthen the information it | needs of service users, with | leaders being an integral part of this
provides to its senior leaders | senior leaders being an integral | process.
to enable them to | part of this process.

understand how services This position was reflected in the
and policies are meeting the | This will include case studies | Council’s 2022/23 Annual _ Self-
needs of service users. within  published quarterly | Assessment, that was scrutinised by the

Performance Reports (aligned | Governance and Audit Committee on

1


https://www.audit.wales/sites/default/files/publications/rct_defnydd_gwybodaeth_perfformiad.pdf
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=149&MId=50004680&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/SelfAssessment2223/RCTCBCSelfAssessment202223.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/SelfAssessment2223/RCTCBCSelfAssessment202223.pdf

g¢ abed

Recommendation

Actions To Address The
Recommendation

Progress Update

Timescale

Responsible
Officer

to services and policies) and
specific service user
information within self-standing
reports. As part of the Council’s
on-going  review of its
approach, where new
developments  will  further
support this area (e.g. the new
Customer Relationship
Management system that will
enhance the availability of
service user information; the
development of ‘you said, we
did’; and new / revised outcome
measures), these will be
incorporated  into  existing
arrangements.

19t December 2023 and considered and
approved by full Council on 17t January
2024, and reaffirmed the need to
strengthen arrangements that will
demonstrate the difference the Council’s
work is making. This is an on-going
programme of work and includes:

e Using the Council's new Customer
Relationship Management System to
enhance the availability of service user
feedback e.g through the development
of the Complaints, Compliments and
Comments Dashboard containing
information at service/ward level;

e Utilising case studies within the
Council’'s performance reports that
illustrate the impact on people’s lives
and also incorporating specific service
user information into self-standing
reports e.g. for illustrative purposes
case studies including evaluation of
Step 4 provision for learners with SEBD
difficulties and Trainee of the Year in
our quarterly Prosperity performance
summary;

¢ Progressing the ‘“You said, We did’
approach that evidences how service
user feedback is being used to inform

March 2024
(and on-

going)

Lead Officers
for new
Corporate
Plan



https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s40430/Report.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s40430/Report.pdf?LLL=0
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Newsroom/PressReleases/2024/February/TraineeoftheYearAnnouncedinRCT.aspx

6E abed

Recommendation Actions To Address The Progress Update Timescale Responsible
Recommendation Officer
service  delivery, for example,
introducing Adult swimming lessons in
our leisure facilities at Tonyrefail
Leisure Centre (press release).
e Services considering more outcome
focussed measures / information as
part of the development of the Council’s
new Corporate Plan.
R2 Outcomes information: | As part of developing the | There is a continued focus on Original
The council should | 2023/24 Corporate Plan priority | demonstrating the impact of the | timescale of
strengthen the information | action plans for People, Places | Council’'s work through more clearer | March 2024
provided to senior leaders to | and Prosperity, work has | outcomes in quarterly performance has been
help them evaluate whether | focussed on setting more clear | reports alongside supporting actions and | revised as per
the council is delivering its | outcomes, a suite of | measures. In parallel, case studies are below.
objectives and the intended | underpinning performance | being used to provide evidence of
outcomes. measures (noting that the suite | impact, for example, the work of the new July 2024
of measures are subject to | Diversionary Activity Team to provide (Year-end
ongoing review) and key | support to those at risk of or who are | Performance
actions to support the delivery | homeless in our communities and a Report)
of intended outcomes. client engaged in support and Delivery Leads
recreational  activities to  reduce for Priorities
With regard to key actions, | loneliness and improve their wellbeing within the new
these include a focus on | (case study). Well-being
evaluating the impact of Objectives
outcomes in specific areas, | As the 2020-24 Corporate Plan comes to | On-going (will
with updates to be reported to | an end, as reflected in the Annual Self- | be reviewed

senior leaders. As part of the

Assessment 2022/23, we have been

on a quarterly



https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Newsroom/PressReleases/2023/October/AdultSwimmingLessonsTonyrefail.aspx
file:///O:/NEW%20O%20DRIVE/Reporting/Reporting%202023-24/Qtr%204%2023-24/Working/Prosperity/Diversionary%20Activity%20Team%20Case%20study%20MB.docx

O abed

Recommendation Actions To Address The Progress Update Timescale Responsible
Recommendation Officer
evaluation process, a suite of | developing the new Corporate Plan | basis during
qualitative and quantitative | 2024-30. The new Plan, endorsed by | 2024/25 as
information will be used | Cabinet in_ March 2024 and subject to part of
(including the information | Council approval in April 2024 sets outa | performance
referenced at R1). range of clearer outcomes for each of the reporting
four new Well-being Objectives. This will | arrangements)
The learning from the above | be underpinned by a suite of
approach is also being applied | performance and outcome measures
in the development of the | and delivery actions which will be
Council’'s new Corporate Plan, | reviewed and refreshed over the life of
effective from April 2024, to | the plan.
continue to build and
strengthen the arrangements in
place.
R3 Arrangements to The  following  assurance
check the quality and arrangements are being
accuracy of data progressed:
The council needs to assure
itself that it has robust elLocal quality assurance - |eLlocal data assurance — local data Original Delivery Plan
arrangements to check the services evidencing the | assurance requirements are being| timescale - Lead Officers
quality and accuracy of the checks undertaken on the | discussed and reviewed with services December
information it provides to quality and accuracy of data/ | as part of current year reporting and | 2023. Review
senior leaders relating to information produced and | also as part of preparations for financial | arrangements
the service user perspective | reported, the frequency of the | year 2024/25. will be on-
and outcomes checks and corrective action going.
taken (where required).
e Corporate quality assurance - | e Corporate quality assurance - the Original Paul Griffiths /
the 2023/24 Internal Audit | Internal Audit Service has undertakena | timescale - | Lesley Lawson
December



https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=50004671&Ver=4&LLL=0

Tt abed

Recommendation

Actions To Address The
Recommendation

Progress Update

Timescale

Responsible
Officer

Plan agreed by Governance
and Audit Committee on 4t
July 2023, includes a review
of performance information to
provide an independent
opinion on the accuracy of the
information produced /
reported (including
information from a service
user perspective). This will be
an annual process, with
services provided with
corporate support (where
required) to  implement
agreed Internal Audit
recommendations.

review of performance information as
part of the 2023/24 Internal Audit Plan.
The report is currently at draft stage.
This area will continue to be highlighted
for review by Internal Audit as part of
the annual internal audit planning
arrangements.

2023. Revised
timescale —
May 2024.




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2023/24

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT

COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 6

29t April 2024

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF WHISTLEBLOWING ANNUAL
HUMAN RESOURCES REPORT 2023/24

Author: Peter Cushion (Head of Employee Relations)
(01443) 444503

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 The purpose of this report is to present the Whistleblowing Annual Report
2023/24 in accordance with the Prescribed Persons (Reports on
Disclosures of Information) Regulation 2017 (the ‘2017 Regulation’).

2. RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that Members:

2.1 Review and if appropriate approve the Whistleblowing Annual Report
2023/24 (Appendix 1) in line with the requirements placed upon the Council
by the 2017 Regulation.

2.2 Consider whether any other changes or improvements to the current
whistleblowing arrangements are required.

3. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 To ensure the Council’'s Whistleblowing Policy & Procedure continues to
be fit for purpose and to provide the Governance and Audit Committee with
a copy of the Council’s Whistleblowing Annual Report in accordance with
its Terms of Reference to demonstrate compliance with the Prescribed
Persons (Reports on Disclosures of Information) Regulation 2017.

Page 43



4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

THE COUNCIL’S WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Council’s Whistleblowing Policy & Procedure was reported to and
approved by the Governance and Audit Committee on 15" March 2023
and was subsequently published on the Council’'s web-site.

The purpose of the Policy is to provide a means by which complaints of
malpractice or wrongdoing can be raised by those who feel that other
avenues for raising such issues are inappropriate. The Policy confirms that
so far as possible, those raising concerns under the Policy will be treated
confidentially.

For Members information, the Whistleblowing Policy & Procedure is kept
under on-going review at an operational level and where further updates
are proposed, these will be reported to the Governance and Audit
committee for consideration / approval.

WHISTLEBLOWING ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24

The Terms of Reference for Governance and Audit Committee state:

As a key element of new arrangements for corporate governance,
designed to ensure openness, integrity and accountability, the
[Governance and Audit] Committee will assist the Authority in discharging
its responsibility for ensuring financial probity, without taking any action
which might prejudice it. The Committee will [specifically in relation to
overseeing a culture of zero tolerance towards serious wrongdoings].-

(C) Review, scrutinise and issue reports and recommendations on the
appropriateness of the Authority’s risk management, internal control
and corporate governance arrangements, and providing the
opportunity for direct discussion with the auditor(s) on these.

(D) To review the assessment of fraud risks and potential harm to the
Council from fraud and corruption and to monitor the counter-fraud
strategy, actions and resources.

(T) Promote and review any measures designed to raise the profile of
probity within the Authority.

In line with the above Terms of Reference, the Council’s Whistleblowing
Annual Report 2023/24 is included at Appendix 1 and subject to the
Governance and Audit Committee’s consideration and feedback, an
approved Whistleblowing Annual Report 2023/24 will be made available on
the Council’s website.

Page 44



6. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS AND SOCIO-ECONOMIC
DUTY

6.1 There are no equality and diversity implications as a result of the
recommendations set out in the report.

7. WELSH LANGUAGE IMPLICATIONS

7.1 There are no Welsh language implications as a result of the
recommendations set out in the report.

8. CONSULTATION

8.1  There are no consultation implications as a result of the
recommendations set out in the report.

9. FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)

9.1 There are no financial implications as a result of the recommendations
set out in the report.

10. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED

10.1 The Prescribed Persons (Reports on Disclosures of Information)
Regulation 2017 (the ‘2017 Regulation’) came into effect on the 15t April
2017 and requires specified employers (known as relevant prescribed
persons) to report annually on the whistleblowing arrangements in place.

10.2 The 2017 Regulation also requires prescribed persons to include in annual
reports information on the number of disclosures made and states that the
annual report be published on the employer's website or by other means
appropriate for bringing the report to the attention of the public.

10.3 A copy of the 2017 Regulation is provided at the following link:

http://www.leqgislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/507/pdfs/uksi 20170507 en.pdf

11. LINKS TO CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE
WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT

THE COUNCIL'S CORPORATE PLAN PRIORITIES

Page 45


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/507/pdfs/uksi_20170507_en.pdf

12.

121

12.2

12.3

The work in relation to probity aims to support the delivery of the Council’s
Corporate Plan through ensuring that appropriate internal controls are in
place to effectively manage resources.

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT

The Sustainable Development Principles, in particular Prevention, can be
applied to the arrangements in place to manage risks associated with
potential misappropriation.

CONCLUSION

The Council’s Whistleblowing Policy & Procedure is kept under on-going
review and continues to be fit for purpose.

A Whistleblowing Annual Report 2023/24 has been prepared in
accordance with the responsibilities placed upon the Council by the 2017
Regulation. The Annual Report provides an overview of the arrangements
in place for 2023/24 and also summarises the reported instances received,
whilst protecting the confidentiality of the whistleblowers.

Overall, the Annual Report concludes that ‘the Council’s whistleblowing
arrangements are appropriate’.

Page 46



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972
AS AMENDED BY
THE ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT, 1985
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
29t APRIL 2024
WHISTLEBLOWING ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24
REPORT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Author: Peter Cushion (Head of Employee Relations)
Item: 6
Background Papers
None.

Officer to contact: Richard Evans

Page 47



Appendix 1 — Whistleblowing Annual Report 2023/24

2

&
RHONDDA CYNON TAF
R ——

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH
COUNCIL

WHISTLEBLOWING ANNUAL REPORT
2023/24

Page 48



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

2.1

2.2

2.3

Introduction

Members of staff are often the first to realise that there may be something
seriously wrong within the Council. However, they may not express their
concerns because they feel that speaking up would be disloyal to their
colleagues or to the Council and they may also fear harassment or
victimisation. In these circumstances, it may appear to be easier to ignore
the concern rather than report it.

For the purpose of the Annual Report, ‘workers’ as set out in the Council’'s
Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure refer to all those that deliver services
on behalf of the Council and also those organisations that provide services
to the Council i.e. Employees, Contractors and Suppliers.

The Council is committed to achieving the highest possible standards of
service. In line with that commitment, workers with serious concerns about
any aspect of the Council's work are encouraged to come forward and
voice those concerns. The Council encourages workers to participate
without fear of reprisals.

The Whistleblowing Policy & Procedure aims to encourage and enable
workers to raise serious concerns within the Council rather than
overlooking a problem.

The Director of Human Resources has overall responsibility for the
maintenance and operation of the Policy and has ensured that a record of
all cases reported along with the outcomes has been compiled during
2023/24.

Raising an Issue

Initially workers should raise their concern with their immediate Line
Manager / Head of Service / key contact within the Council, who will be
able to determine whether they can deal with the concern or if it requires
escalation. This can depend on the seriousness and sensitivity of the
issues involved and who is thought to be involved in the matter.

In some instances the direct contacts may be the individuals where
concerns relate, in which case, concerns can be raised in writing via the
Get Involved section of the Council’s Website. Individuals should include
as much information as possible such as relevant dates, incidents and
witnesses. If individuals wish to leave contact details then this is
encouraged as quite often the ability to fully investigate necessitates
contact to be made by an investigating officer should they have
supplementary questions.

The Whistleblowing Policy & Procedure provides guidance in respect of
anonymity and keeping the identity of a Whistleblower confidential.

Page 49


https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/GetInvolved/Whistleblowing/Whistleblowing.aspx

3.1

3.2

3.3

What’s been done to assess awareness?

Previous actions the Council has taken to raise awareness of the
Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure include the Policy being incorporated
in both staff and manager induction processes; a payslip insert; posters
circulated to service areas to include on notice boards; and on-going fraud
awareness updates.

The Whistleblowing Policy & Procedure is published on the Council’s
website and further awareness raising has been undertaken across
Council Services via a global email.

For Members information, the Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure will be
kept under on-going review and where further updates are proposed, these
will be reported to the Governance and Audit Committee for consideration
and if deemed appropriate, approval.

Page 50



4, Whistleblowing activity during 2023/24

4.1 A summary of whistleblowing activity completed during 2023/24 is set out in
Table 1. Members will note that dates the allegations were received and the
investigations completed have been incorporated into Table 1.
Table 1 - Whistleblowing Activity 2023/24
Date Disclosure Summary Method Action Taken Date
Received Disclosure Completed
SCHOOL RELATED
2nd May | General allegation that a | Online An investigation | 3" May 2023
2023 primary school has gone | submission | was undertaken by
downhill since the Management and
appointment of a new established  that
headteacher. generally positive
feedback has been
received in respect
of the operation of
the school since
the Headteacher’s
appointment.
No further action
taken.
22" June | It was alleged that a school | Online Discussion  with | 22" June 2023
2023 caretaker was seen buying 4 | submission | the Headteacher of
cans of lager in the shop on the school took
the way to work and place and the
constantly going back and Headteacher fed
forth to the car to drink them. back that there has
been no evidence
or reported
instances of the
caretaker drinking
or smelling of
alcohol whilst in
work and on the
school premises.
No further action
taken.
1st It was alleged that a non- | Online The staff member | 4" September
September | teaching school-based | submission | had already made | 2023
2023 member of staff had recently the school aware

been arrested.

of the incident.
Discussions took
place with the
Council’s

Page 51




Date
Received

Disclosure Summary

Method
Disclosure

Action Taken

Date
Completed

Safeguarding
Team, with
confirmation that
the matter could be
dealt with by the
School. The
School re-iterated
to the staff
member
appropriate  and
expected conduct,
provided relevant
policies to ensure
the individual was
fully aware of their
responsibilities
and a period of
monitoring
regarding
behaviour was put
in place (no further
issues were
reported during the
monitoring
period).

NON-SCHO

OL RELATED

1st April
2023

It was alleged that staff at a
community recycling centre
were drinking alcohol, taking
and selling drugs on site,
selling televisions and taking
money from  commercial
builders.

Online
submission

The manager
reviewed CCTV
footage of previous
weeks and no
evidence to
corroborate the
allegations  were
found. Supervisor
visits to  sites
continue to be
undertaken as part
of arrangements to
manage and
oversee
operations.

No further action
taken.

7t April 2023

2nd
2023

April

The following statement was
submitted;

Online
submission

No further action
taken.

27 April 2023

Page 52




Date Disclosure Summary Method Action Taken Date
Received Disclosure Completed
Since being relieved of duties
on recycling sites, I've made
various claims about wrong
doing of late. Mostly untrue.
I've been angry and won't
make anymore claims about
site staff.
16t May | It was alleged that a driver of | Online The Service | 23 May 2023
2023 a RCT Council van was | submission | Manager
driving erratically, almost undertook an
hitting other vehicles. investigation and,
based on
information
available from the
vehicle tracker
system, this
identified concerns
in respect of the
standard of driving.
Based on the
evidence, the
driver of the
vehicle (employed
on an agency
basis) was not re-
engaged.
10t June | It was alleged that a Council | Online The service | 151 June 2023
2023 employee was taking their | submission | manager reviewed
grandchildren to school using vehicle tracker
a Council vehicle and in work system information
time. and the allegations
were not
corroborated. The
manager made
the employee
aware of the
allegations and no
further action was
taken.
14t July | It was alleged that an | Online An  investigation | 18" July 2023
2023 and |individual appointed to a |submission |was undertaken
5t October | Council post did not disclose a and confirmed that
2023 personal connection / interest the individual had
at the time of appointment, as disclosed a
required when completing a personal

Page 53




Date Disclosure Summary Method Action Taken Date
Received Disclosure Completed
job application form for a connection /
position within the Council, interest as part of
and also the need to improve the job application
transparency of operational process, and the
decision making within this operational service
service area. arrangements  in
place were found
to be appropriate.
No further action
taken.
gth Allegations of racist language | Online An  investigation | 13t September
September | used by a Council Officer | submission | was undertaken by | 2023
2023 toward a local trader. the relevant Head
of Service. It was
established  that
another  Council
Officer was also
present at the time
of the alleged
incident and
confirmed that no
inappropriate
behaviour or
comments  were
made.
No further action
taken.
11t It was alleged that a new | Online An investigation | 14t September
September | member of staff was too | submission | was undertaken by | 2023
2023 young to be appointed to a the relevant Head
position within the Public of Service, the
Health, Protection and result of which
Community Services service determined  that
area. the allegation was
unfounded.
No further action
taken.
5th It was alleged Waste Service | Online An investigation | 8" September
September | employees used inappropriate | submission | was undertaken by | 2023
2023 language when undertaking the service
their duties. manager. Due to
insufficient

information being
provided as part of

Page 54




Date
Received

Disclosure Summary

Method
Disclosure

Action Taken

Date

Completed

the whistle-blowing
submission, staff
members who
were alleged to
have used
inappropriate
language could not
be identified. As
part of the
investigation, the
service manager
spoke to all
relevant staff in
terms of conduct
and behaviour.

No further action
taken.

27th
September
2023

An  allegation that an
employee shared an
inappropriate post on their
personal facebook profile
against an individual who had
been found innocent by a
Court of Law.

Online
submission

The allegation was
considered by the
relevant Head of
Service and
coincided with the
employee leaving
the employment of
the Council.

No further action
taken.

4th
2023

October

1 1th
October
2023

It was alleged that the creation
of specific posts within a
service area were
unnecessary and represented
mis-spending of  Council
funds.

Online
submission

An investigation
was undertaken
and determined
that the posts were
approved following
consideration  of
‘need’ and
confirmation of
funding, with the
process followed
being in line with
the Council’s
agreed Human
Resource
procedures.

No further action
taken.

1 7th
2023

October

Page 55




Date
Received

Disclosure Summary

Method
Disclosure

Action Taken

Date

Completed

24th
October
2023

It was alleged that a Waste
Services employee used
inappropriate language while
undertaking their duties.

Online
submission

An  investigation
was undertaken by
the Service
Manager. The
employee
concerned
admitted this
behaviour and
indicated that they
did not realise a
member of the
public was nearby.
The employee was
reminded of their
responsibilities in
terms of conduct
and behaviour.

No further action
taken.

27th
2023

October

30th
October
2023

It was alleged that a Council
employee was convicted of an
offence approximately 5 years
previously.

Online
submission

An  investigation
was undertaken
and no record of
the name and date
of birth provided as
part of the whistle-
blowing

submission were
recorded on the
Council’s systems.
No further action
taken.

31st
2023

October

1 1th
November
2023

It was alleged that staff in a
specific service area all leave
15 minutes early on a daily
basis.

Online
submission

An  investigation
was undertaken by
the service
manager and no
evidence was
found of staff
leaving early.

No further action
taken.

16t November

2023

27th
November
2023

It was alleged that a Council
employee had been making
threats to the whistle-blower,
had been drink driving and
abusing their partner and

Online
submission

An investigation
was undertaken,
and no record of
the name and date
of birth provided as

27t November

2023

Page 56




Date
Received

Disclosure Summary

Method
Disclosure

Action Taken

Date

Completed

concern expressed for this
family’s children.

part of the whistle-
blowing

submission were
recorded on the
Council’s systems.
No further action
taken.

1st
December
2023

It was alleged that a Council
employee used inappropriate
language in the office.

Online
Submission

An  investigation
was undertaken by
the service
manager that
entailed speaking
to two members of
staff who were
present at the time
of the alleged
incident. Both staff
members
confirmed that they
did not hear any
derogatory
comments.

No further action
taken.

Bt
2023

December

5th
December
2023

It was alleged that a Council
employee provided false
information when registering a
death for financial gain.

Online
submission

An  investigation
was undertaken by
the service
manager and no
fraudulent action
was identified.

No further action
taken.

1 zth
2023

December

5th
February
2024

A submission was received
alleging slander and
defamation of character by a
Council employee against an
external contractor.

Online
submission

An investigation
was undertaken by
the relevant Head
of Service who met
with the
complainants and
Council employee,
with the matter
satisfactorily

resolved as part of
the meeting.

22nd
2024

February

Page 57




Date Disclosure Summary Method Action Taken Date
Received Disclosure Completed
No further action
taken.
20t It was alleged a Council | Online An investigation | 239 February
February employee was behaving | submission | was undertaken by | 2024
2024 inappropriately in a public the service
house outside of work time, manager, the
that included references to findings from
how their job role within the which determined
Council could impact on local that the employee
traders. concerned is in a
Council role that
has no remit over
license traders and
no complaints had
been received
from the business
concerned.
No further action
taken.
26t It was alleged an individual | Online An investigation | 29" February
February claiming to be a Council | submission | was undertaken by | 2024
2024 employee behaved the service
inappropriately when manager, the
undertaking a routine check of findings from
a hackney carriage. which determined
the allegations to
be unfounded i.e.
the employee was
not working on the
date the alleged
incident took
place.
No further action
taken.
4t March | It was alleged that an Amgen | On-line An  investigation | 13 March
2024 employee was taking drugs, | submission |was undertaken, | 2024
drinking alcohol in work and with the service
taking inappropriate pictures manager meeting
that include the workplace in with the employee.
the background. The employee
denied the
allegations and
volunteered their
personal  mobile
phone to be

reviewed by the

Page 58




Date Disclosure Summary Method Action Taken Date
Received Disclosure Completed

service manager.
On examination,
no evidence of

inappropriate
pictures were
found and no
evidence was
identified of the
employee
consuming alcohol
or other
substances.

No specific action
taken in respect of
the whistleblowing

submission;
however, on-going
monitoring
arrangements in
place.

5. Concluding comments

5.1 Whilst all staff are required to follow relevant Policies and Procedures put in
place by the Council, unfortunately there are a very small number of instances
where some individuals decide to contravene these arrangements.

5.2 In such instances, it is necessary that the Council has the appropriate
arrangements in place for individuals to report potential serious wrongdoings.

5.3 It is difficult to fully ascertain how effective the Council’s whistleblowing
arrangements are in respect of awareness across all workers, and indeed
whether all workers feel comfortable to report potential concerns. However, the
fact that whistleblowers have come forward during 2023/24 does indicate a
general awareness and a culture whereby staff do feel comfortable to do so.

5.4 All whistleblowing referrals have been fully investigated and where appropriate,
the necessary action has been taken.

5.5 Based upon the information contained within this report, | conclude that overall
the Council’s whistleblowing arrangements are appropriate.

Richard Evans — Director, Human Resources

Page 59




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2023/24

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
AGENDA ITEM NO. 7
29th April 2024

REPORT OF THE DEPUTY CHIEF INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER
EXECUTIVE AND GROUP DIRECTOR - 2024/25
FINANCE, DIGITAL AND FRONTLINE
SERVICES

Author(s): Marc Crumbie & Lisa Cumpston

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To present to Members the Internal Audit Service Charter for 2024/25.

2. RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that Members:

2.1 Consider and approve the Internal Audit Service Charter for 2024/25 as
attached as Appendix A to this report.

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 To ensure the Governance and Audit Committee has oversight of the purpose,
authority and responsibilities of the Council’s Internal Audit Service and to
ensure conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).

4. BACKGROUND INFORMATION

4.1  The Internal Audit Charter is a formal document that defines the purpose,
authority and responsibility of Internal Audit activities. The Internal Audit Charter
establishes Internal Audit’s position within the organisation; authorises access
to records, personnel and physical properties relevant to the performance of
engagements; and defines the scope of Internal Audit activities.

Page 61



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

5.1

5.2

5.3

The Governance and Audit Committee has responsibility to review and approve
the Internal Audit Charter in line with its Terms of Reference and the PSIAS.

The PSIAS are applicable to all areas of the United Kingdom public sector and
are based on the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditor’s (CIIA’s) International
Professional Practices Framework.

The Internal Audit Service is committed to meeting the requirements set out
within the PSIAS Framework and any significant areas of non-conformance will
be reported to Governance and Audit Committee.

The Charter is split into the following sections:

e Purpose, Authority and Responsibility;

e Independence and Obijectivity;

e Proficiency and Due Professional Care; and

e Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme.

The Charter also has two annexes containing a Glossary of Terms and the
Code of Ethics.

The role of the Governance and Audit Committee in relation to Internal Audit
are to:

e Oversee its independence, objectivity, performance and professionalism;
e Support the effectiveness of the internal audit work process; and
e Promote the effective use of internal audit within the assurance framework.

One of the key roles which demonstrate the Governance and Audit Committee’s
oversight is the approval of the Internal Audit Service’s Internal Audit Charter.

INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 2024/25

The PSIAS requires the Internal Audit Charter to be reviewed periodically, with
final approval residing with the Governance and Audit Committee.

The Internal Audit Service Charter for 2024/25 is attached at Appendix A and
defines the purpose, authority and responsibilities of the Internal Audit Service
within Rhondda Cynon Taf Council. The Charter has been reviewed and
updated, where appropriate, to support the delivery of internal audit services in
2024/25 and ensure it continues to reflect the requirements of the PSIAS. For
Members information, the updates incorporated into the Charter are minor in
nature and reflect the Internal Audit Service being brought back in-house from
April 2024.

Paragraph 4.10 of the Charter relating to External Assessment has also been
updated to reflect that a comprehensive and detailed self-assessment of the
Regional Internal Audit Service (including the Internal Audit Service for
Rhondda Cynon Taf Council) was carried out in 2022 and shared with the
external assessors in November 2022. The results of the external assessment

Page 62



6.1

7.1

8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

10.2

11.

11.1

11.2

was reported to the Governance and Audit Committee at the meeting held on
4t September 2023 and set out full conformance with the PSIAS.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS / SOCIO-ECONOMIC DUTY

There are no equality and diversity implications or socio-economic implications
as a result of the recommendations set out in the report.

CONSULTATION

There are no consultation implications as a result of the recommendations set
out in the report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)

An effective Internal Audit Service is a key contributor in ensuring that the
Council’s assets and interests are properly accounted for and safeguarded.
There are no financial implications as a result of the recommendations set out
in the report.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED

The provision of an adequate and effective Internal Audit function is a legal
requirement under the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2018 as
amended from time to time.

LINKS TO CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE WELL-

BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT & FIVE WAYS OF WORKING

The work undertaken by the Internal Audit service will help to ensure that the
appropriate internal controls are in place to effectively manage resources and
contribute to the delivery of the Council’'s Corporate Plan.

The wellbeing goals identified in the Future Generations Act were considered
in the preparation of this report. The Sustainable Development Principle, in
particular Prevention, can be applied to the systematic reviews undertaken in
order to provide assurance that risks to the achievement of objectives are being
managed.

CONCLUSION

The Internal Audit Charter is the document that defines the purpose, authority
and responsibility of Internal Audit services to be delivered by the Internal Audit
Service at Rhondda Cynon Taf Council.

In line with the PSIAS, the Internal Audit Service has drafted an Internal Audit

Charter for Governance and Audit Committee’s consideration, and if deemed
appropriate, approval for the 2024/25 financial year.

Page 63


https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s42398/Report.pdf?LLL=0

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972
AS AMENDED BY
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE
29t APRIL 2024
ITEM NO. 7
INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 2024/25

REPORT OF THE DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND GROUP DIRECTOR -
FINANCE, DIGITAL AND FRONTLINE SERVICES

Author(s):
Marc Crumbie & Lisa Cumpston

Page 64



APPENDIX A

(@T\\&V

RHONDDA CYNON TAF

Internal Audit Charter
2024/25

Rhondda Cynon Taf
County Borough Council

April 2024

Page 65



Review and Approval of the Internal Audit Charter
This Internal Audit Charter defines the purpose, authority and responsibility of the
Internal Audit Service.

The Internal Audit Charter is defined within the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
as follows:

The Internal Audit Charter is a formal document that defines the purpose, authority
and responsibility of Internal Audit activities. The Internal Audit Charter establishes
Internal Audit’s position within the organisation; authorises access to records,
personnel and physical properties relevant to the performance of engagements;
and defines the scope of Internal Audit activities.

A professional, independent and objective Internal Audit Service is one of the key
elements of good governance, as recognised throughout the UK Public Sector.

The purpose of this Internal Audit Service Charter is to define the purpose, authority
and responsibilities of the Internal Audit Service for Rhondda Cynon Taf Council.

The Charter establishes the position of internal audit activity within the Council along
with reporting lines, authorising access to records, personnel and physical property
relevant to the performance of audit work and defines the scope of internal audit
activities.

The Head of Internal Audit is responsible for reviewing the Charter and presenting it to
the Governance & Audit Committee annually for review and approval.

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards sets out the Mission of Internal Audit (what
internal audit aspires to accomplish within an organisation) and the definition of Internal
Auditing.

Mission of Internal Audit:

To enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk-based and
objective assurance, advice and insight.

Page 66



Definition of Internal Auditing

Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity
designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an
organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control
and governance processes.

A. Within Rhondda Cynon Taf Council, the role of the Board, as defined within the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, will be the responsibility of the Council’s
Governance & Audit Committee and any reference made throughout this document
relating to the Governance & Audit Committee assumes the responsibilities of the
Board as defined and referred to within the Standards.

B. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require that the internal audit charter

defines the terms Board, Chief Audit Executive and Senior Management in relation
to the work of internal audit. For the purposes of internal audit work the roles are
defined as follows:
+ Board — The internal audit activity is established and defined by the
Board, (hereafter referred to as the Governance & Audit Committee)

which has responsibility for overseeing the work of Internal Audit.

 Chief Audit Executive — The role of the Chief Audit Executive is

undertaken by the Head of Internal Audit.

» Senior Management — Senior Management is defined as those officers
designated as Chief Officers as set out in each Council’s Constitution.

C. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards became effective from the 1st of April
2013 and were updated in March 2017. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
replaced the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the
United Kingdom 2006. Conformance with the Standards, the Definition of Internal
Auditing and Code of Ethics is mandatory.

The Internal Audit Service is committed to meeting the standards laid down in the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards Framework and any significant areas of non-
conformance will be reported to the Governance & Audit Committee.

D. The Charter is split into the following sections;
1. Purpose, Authority and Responsibility;
2. Independence and objectivity;
3. Proficiency and due professional care;
4. Quality assurance and improvement programme.

Page 67



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

Purpose, Authority and Responsibility (Standard 1000)

Internal Audit is an assurance function that primarily provides an independent
and objective opinion to management and Members on the control environment
comprising risk management, internal control and governance by evaluating its
effectiveness in achieving the Council’s objectives.

It objectively examines, evaluates and reports on the adequacy of the control
environment as a contribution to the proper, economic, efficient and effective
use of resources.

It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic,
disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk
management, control and governance issues.

In addition, the other objectives of the function are to:

. Support the Chief Finance Officer in each Council to discharge their
Section 151 duties;

. Contribute to and support the organisation with the objective of ensuring
the provision of, and promoting the need for, sound financial systems;

. Investigate allegations of fraud or irregularity to help safeguard public
funds in consultation with relevant Council Services;

. Support the work of the relevant Governance & Audit Committees; and

. Provide an annual audit opinion on the overall adequacy and

effectiveness of the Council’'s framework of governance, risk
management and control.

These objectives will be delivered through maintaining a high quality Internal
Audit function that meets the needs of the Council, supporting the Section 151
Officer and the Governance & Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities and meeting the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards.

Internal Audit is a statutory service. Part 3 of The Accounts and Audit (Wales)
Regulations 2018 concerns financial management and internal control.
Regulation 5 (responsibility for internal control and financial management) of
Part 3 directs that:

‘The relevant body must ensure that there is a sound system of internal control
which facilitates the effective exercise of that body’s functions and which
includes:

Arrangements for the management of risk, and (b)

Adequate and effective financial management.’

Regulation 7 (Internal Audit) of Part 3 directs that:

‘A relevant body must maintain an adequate and effective system of internal
audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal control.’

Page 68



1.8

1.9

1.10

1.1

1.12

1.13

1.14

1.15

The work of Internal Audit forms part of the assurance framework, however, the
existence of Internal Audit does not diminish the responsibility of management
to establish systems of internal control to ensure that activities are conducted
in a secure, efficient and well-ordered manner.

Section 151 of the Local Government Finance Act 1972 requires every local
authority to designate an Officer to be responsible for the proper administration
of its financial affairs. In each Council it is the Chief Finance Officer/Head of
Finance/Director of Finance or equivalent.

Scope
The scope for Internal Audit work includes the control environment comprising
risk management, control and governance.

This effectively means that Internal Audit has the remit to independently review
all the Council’s operations, resources, services and processes in place to:

. Establish and monitor the achievement of Council objectives;

. Identify, assess and manage the risks to achieving the Council’s
objectives;

. Facilitate policy and decision making;

. Ensure the economical, effective and efficient use of resources;

. Ensure compliance with established policies, procedures, laws and
regulations;

. Safeguard assets and interests from losses of all kinds, including
those arising from fraud, irregularity or corruption; and

. Ensure the integrity and reliability of information, accounts and data,

including internal and external reporting.

All the Council’s activities, funded from whatever source, and indeed the entire
control environment fall within the remit of Internal Audit.

Internal Audit will consider the adequacy of controls necessary to secure
propriety, economy, efficiency and effectiveness in all areas. It will seek to
confirm that management have taken all necessary steps to achieve these
objectives.

The scope of Internal Audit work should cover all operational and management
controls and should not be restricted to the audit of systems and controls
necessary to form an opinion on the financial statements. This does not imply
that all systems will necessarily be reviewed, but that all will be included in the
audit needs assessment and hence considered for review following the
assessment of risk. The Internal Audit activity is free from interference in
determining the scope of internal auditing, performing work and communicating
results.

It is not the remit of Internal Audit to challenge the appropriateness of Policy
decisions. However, Internal Audit is required to examine the management

Page 69



1.16

1.17

1.18

1.19

arrangements of the Council by which such decisions are made, monitored and
reviewed.

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards provide the following definitions for
assurance and consultancy work:

. Assurance Services

An objective examination of evidence for the purpose of providing an
independent assessment on governance, risk management and
internal control for the organisation. Examples may include financial,
performance, compliance, system security and due diligence
engagements. This work will usually result in an opinion being
provided. (These Services may also be provided to other parties and
organisations).

« Consulting Services

Advisory and related client service activities, the nature and scope of
which are agreed with the client, are intended to add value and improve
an organisation’s governance, risk management and internal control
without the Internal Auditor assuming management responsibility.
Examples include counsel, advice, facilitation and training. The nature
of Consulting Services provided includes acting as a ‘critical friend’ on
Project Boards. This work will not normally result in an opinion being
provided. (These Services may also be provided to other parties and
organisations).

The core aim of the work undertaken is to establish a risk based annual Internal
Audit Plan that is balanced and covers the control environment of the Council
as far as is practicable. In order to undertake a balanced workload, Internal
Audit plans to complete a mix of assurance and consultancy work, the outcomes
of which contribute to the Internal Audit Annual Report where it concludes with
an opinion on the Council’s overall risk, governance and control environment.
The Head of Internal Audit should share information, coordinate activities and
consider relying upon the work of other internal and external assurance and
consulting service providers to ensure proper coverage and minimise
duplication of efforts.

Internal Audit has right of access to all of the Council’s records, information and
assets that it considers necessary to fulfil its responsibilities, including those of
partner organisations. Internal Audit staff shall have unrestricted access to all
Council activities and records (whether manual or computerised systems),
personnel, cash, stores, other assets and premises, including those of partner
organisations and have authority to obtain such information and explanations
as considered necessary to fulfil Internal Audit’s responsibilities.

Rights of Access

All staff are required to give complete co-operation to Internal Audit staff to
enable the undertaking of an audit.

Page 70



1.20

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

All partners/agents contracted to provide services on the Council’s behalf are
also required to co-operate with Internal Audit staff and make available all
necessary information. Rights of access to other bodies funded by the Council
should be set out in conditions of funding or contract documents.

Independence and Objectivity (Standard 1100)

The main determinant of the effectiveness of Internal Audit is that it is seen to
be independent and that Internal Auditors must be objective in performing their
work. To ensure this, Internal Audit operates within a framework that allows:

+ The Head of Internal Audit has direct access to the Chief Executive, the
Section 151 Officer and Monitoring Officer;

* Unrestricted access to Directors, Heads of Service, Managers and Staff;

» Unrestricted access to Members (including the Leader, Cabinet Members
and Governance & Audit Committee);

* Unrestricted access to Audit Wales (i.e. the Council’'s External Auditor);

* Reporting in its own name; and

* Internal Audit is free from interference when determining the scope of audit
reviews, performing the work and communicating the results.

This is achieved through a reporting relationship in each Council as shown in
Figure 1 below:

Figure 1 — Internal Audit reporting arrangements

Head of Paid Service

Head of Internal Section 151 Officer
Audit

Governance & Audit
Committee Members

Section 151 Officer

The Section 151 Officer has overall responsibility for the proper administration
of the Council’s financial affairs. Internal Audit assists the Officer by providing
an opinion on the overall control environment and by regular assurance testing
of the key financial systems.

Governance & Audit Committee

The Council operates a Governance & Audit Committee that meets on a cyclical
basis. It monitors the performance of Internal Audit in relation to productivity,
efficiency and quality. It receives regular reports from Internal Audit including

Page 71



2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

212

2.13

progress in delivering the Annual Audit Plan and is attended by the Head of
Internal Audit as well as Officers from the Council.

In addition, the Governance & Audit Committee receives the Internal Audit
Annual Report that provides a summary of all assurance and consultancy work
undertaken and concludes by giving an opinion on the overall control
environment within the Council. If an unfavourable annual internal audit opinion
is issued, the reasons to support this will be stated within the Internal Audit
Annual Report.

The Head of Internal Audit has unrestricted access to the Chair of Governance
& Audit Committee.

Senior Management

Each Council is divided into various Services and it is the role of the Chief
Executive and each Director, Head of Service or equivalent to ensure delivery
and operation of the service areas falling within their remit.

Relationships with key stakeholders and Service Managers
The Internal Audit Service develops constructive working relationships with
Managers at all levels within the Council in terms of:

. Planning work;
. Carrying out audit assignments; and
. Agreeing action plans arising from the work undertaken.

Whilst maintaining its independence, the Internal Audit Service recognises that
it must work with Managers to agree improvements that are deemed necessary.

External Auditors

The aim of the relationship between internal and external auditors is to achieve
mutual recognition and respect, leading to a joint improvement in performance
and to avoid, wherever possible, duplication of work.

The Head of Internal Audit liaises regularly with Audit Wales to consult on audit
plans, discuss matters of mutual interest and to seek opportunities for co-
operation in the conduct of audit work.

Elected Members

The Head of Internal Audit will aim to have sound working relationships and
channels of communication with Elected Members and in particular,
Governance & Audit Committee, Cabinet and Scrutiny Committees.

Internal Audit Standards

There is a statutory requirement for Internal Audit to work in accordance with
the “proper audit practices”. These are set out in the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards (PSIAS) which the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA) developed in collaboration with the Chartered Institute of

Page 72



2.14

2.15

2.16

217

3.1

3.2

Internal Auditors (CIIA) and which came into force on the 1st April 2013 and
updated in March 2017.

Internal Audit Staff will:

. Comply with relevant auditing standards;

. Comply and promote compliance throughout the Council with all Council
rules and policies;

. Be expected at all times to adopt a professional, reliable, independent
and innovative approach to their work; and

. It is essential that Internal Audit staff are seen to be impartial. All Internal
Audit staff are required to complete an annual declaration of their
interests and must be kept up to date. This is reviewed as part of the
annual appraisal and is in line with professional ethics. The Head of
Internal Audit is responsible for ensuring that audit staff are not assigned
to operational areas or investigations that could compromise their
independence (including previous and / or secondary employment
elsewhere in the relevant Council or organisation being audited).

The Internal Audit Service has adopted the CIIA’s Code of Ethics. Where
members of Internal Audit have attained membership with other professional
bodies such as: CIPFA or the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales (ICAEW), those officers must also comply with their relevant bodies’
ethical requirements.

Each member of the Team will receive a copy of the Code of Ethics (included
at Annex 2) and sign up to an annual declaration to confirm that they will work
in compliance with the Code of Ethics as well as the Council’s standards and
policies such as the Codes of Conduct. Where potential areas of conflict may
arise during the year, the auditor will also be required to disclose this. It is critical
that all Auditors maintain high standards of integrity, independence, objectivity,
confidentiality and competence.

In addition to the Code of Ethics staff must comply with the Seven Principles of
Public Life and Rhondda Cynon Taf Council’s Code of Corporate Governance
which are referred to in Annex 3 — Additional Requirements.

Proficiency and Due Professional Care (standard 1200)

Directors, Heads of Service and Service Managers are responsible for ensuring
that internal control arrangements are sufficient to address the risks facing their
Service including the risk of fraud and corruption.

The Head of Internal Audit is required to manage the provision of an Internal
Audit Service which will include reviewing the systems of internal control
operating throughout the Council, and will adopt a combination of system
based, risk based, regularity, computer and contract audit approaches in
addition to the investigation of fraud.

Page 73



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

In discharge of this duty, the Head of Internal Audit will:

* Prepare an annual risk-based audit plan for approval by the Governance &
Audit Committee; and

* The annual plan will be regarded as flexible and may be revised to reflect
changing services and risk assessments; elements of the annual plan are
also based on items within the Council’s Strategic Risk Register.

Resources and Proficiency

For the Internal Audit Service to fulfil its responsibilities, the service must be
appropriately staffed in terms of numbers, professional qualifications, skills and
experience. Resources must be effectively developed and deployed to achieve
the approved risk-based plan. The Head of Internal Audit is responsible for
ensuring that there is access to the full range of knowledge, skills, qualifications
and experience to deliver the audit plan and meet the requirements of the
PSIAS.

Each job role within the Internal Audit Service structure details the prerequisite
skills and competencies required for that role and these will be assessed
annually in line with Council policy and the PSIAS. Any development and
training plans will be regularly reviewed, monitored and agreed with officers.

All Auditors are also required to maintain a record of their continual professional
development in line with their professional body.

Due Professional Care
Internal Auditors must exercise due professional care by considering the:

. Extent of work needed to achieve the assignment objectives;

. Relative complexity, materiality or significance of matters to which
assurance procedures are applied,;

. Adequacy and effectiveness of governance, risk management and
control processes;

. Probability of significant error, fraud, or non-compliance;

. Cost of assurance in relation to potential benefits; and

. Considering various data analysis techniques and being alert to

significant risks that may affect the objectives.

Relationships

All stakeholders will be treated with respect, courtesy, politeness and
professionalism. Any confidential or sensitive issues raised with or reported to
Internal Audit staff will be dealt with in an appropriate manner.

Internal — Our main contacts are with:

. Elected Members;

. Chief Officers (as defined in the Council’s Constitution);
. Corporate Directors and Section 151 Officer;

. Heads of Service and Headteachers;

Page 74



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

. Group Managers / Operational Managers and line supervisors;

. Front line employees delivering services to the public; and

. Back office support staff, in particular Financial Services, Legal Services,
ICT and HR.

External — Our main contacts are with:

. The Council’'s External Auditors.

. Various Government Agencies and Inspectorates.

Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (Standard 1300)

To enable the Head of Internal Audit to assess Internal Audit activities with
conformance to the PSIAS and to aid in the annual assessment of the Internal
Audit Service’s efficiency and effectiveness and identify opportunities for
improvement, a Quality Improvement and Management Programme (QIMP)
has been developed.

The QIMP includes both internal and external assessments in accordance with
the Standards.

Assessment against QIMP forms part of the annual assessment of the
effectiveness of internal audit (as contained within the Head of Internal Audit’s
Annual Opinion Report) which is presented to the Governance & Audit
Committee.

Where there are instances of non-conformance to the PSIAS this will be
reported to the Governance & Audit Committee and any significant deviations
being detailed within the Annual Governance Statement.

Internal Assessment

All Auditors have access to up to date business processes, working instructions,
the Internal Audit Charter, Council policies, the PSIAS, journals, publications
and other relevant articles and electronic training material and websites. Where
staff are members of bodies such as CIPFA and/or CIIA further guidance is
available.

To maintain quality, work is allocated to staff with appropriate skills, competence
and experience. All levels of staff are supervised. Work is monitored for
progress, assessed for quality and to allow for coaching and mentoring.

Targets are set for individual auditors (such as completion of an audit within a
set number of days) as well as for the team. Updates on performance of the
Internal Audit Service will be reported to the Governance & Audit Committee
throughout each Municipal year, in accordance with their Terms of reference.

In addition to the QIMP, progress made against the annual audit plan and any

emerging issues (i.e. fraud risks or governance issues) are reported regularly
to the Governance & Audit Committee.

Page 75



4.9

4.10

Ongoing assessment of individuals is carried out through regular on-going
reviews, one to one meetings, feedback from clients via the Client Satisfaction
Surveys and formally in the annual personal development review process.

External Assessment

In compliance with the PSIAS, external assessment will be carried out once
every five years by a qualified, independent assessor or assessment team from
outside of the Council. A comprehensive and detailed self-assessment was
carried out in 2022 and shared with external assessors in November 2022. The
results of the external assessment of the Regional Internal Audit Service
(including the Internal Audit Service for Rhondda Cynon Taf Council) were
shared with Governance and Audit Committee at the meeting held on 4t
September 2023.

Page 76



Annex 1 - Glossary of Terms

Charter

The internal audit charter is a formal document that defines the internal audit activity’s
purpose, authority and responsibility. The internal audit charter establishes the internal
audit activity’s position within the organisation; authorises access to records,
personnel and physical properties relevant to the performance of engagements; and
defines the scope of internal audit activities.

Chief Audit Executive

Chief audit executive describes the role of a person in a senior position responsible for
effectively managing the internal audit activity in accordance with the internal audit
charter and the mandatory elements of the International Professional Practices
Framework. The chief audit executive or others reporting to the chief audit executive
will have appropriate professional certifications and qualifications. The specific job title
and/or responsibilities of the chief audit executive may vary across organisations. In
the context of the Internal Audit Service this is the Head of Internal Audit.

Code of Ethics

The Code of Ethics of the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA) are Principles
relevant to the profession and practice of internal auditing and Rules of Conduct that
describe behaviour expected of internal auditors. The Code of Ethics applies to both
parties and entities that provide internal audit services.

The purpose of the Code of Ethics is to promote an ethical culture in the global
profession of internal auditing.

Compliance
Adherence to policies, plans, procedures, laws, regulations, contracts, or other
requirements.

Conflict of Interest

Any relationship that is, or appears to be, not in the best interest of the organisation. A
conflict of interest would prejudice an individual’s ability to perform his or her duties
and responsibilities objectively.

Control

Any action taken by management, the board and other parties to manage risk and
increase the likelihood that established objectives and goals will be achieved.
Management plans, organises and directs the performance of sufficient actions to
provide reasonable assurance that objectives and goals will be achieved.

Control Environment
The control environment provides the discipline and structure for the achievement of
the primary objectives of the system of internal control. The control environment
includes the following elements:

* Integrity and ethical values;

Page 77



+ Management’s philosophy and operating style;
» Organisational structure;

» Assignment of authority and responsibility;

* Human resource policies and practices; and

« Competence of personnel.

Fraud

Any illegal act characterised by deceit, concealment or violation of trust. These acts
are not dependent upon the threat of violence or physical force. Frauds are perpetrated
by parties and organisations to obtain money, property or services; to avoid payment
or loss of services; or to secure personal or business advantage.

Governance

The combination of processes and structures implemented by the board to inform,
direct, manage and monitor the activities of the organisation toward the achievement
of its objectives.

Public sector definition: Governance Statement
The mechanism by which an organisation publicly reports on its governance
arrangements each year.

Independence
The freedom from conditions that threaten the ability of the internal audit activity to
carry out internal audit responsibilities in an unbiased manner.

Internal Auditing

Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity
designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an
organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach
to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and
governance processes.

Overall Opinion

The rating, conclusion and/or other description of results provided by the chief audit
executive addressing, at a broad level, governance, risk management and/or control
processes of the organisation. An overall opinion is the professional judgement of the
chief audit executive based on the results of a number of individual engagements and
other activities for a specific time interval.

Risk
The possibility of an event occurring that will have an impact on the achievement of
objectives. Risk is measured in terms of impact and likelihood.

Risk Appetite
The level of risk that an organisation is willing to accept.

Page 78



Risk Management

A process to identify, assess, manage and control potential events or situations to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of the organisation’s
objectives.

Page 79



Annex 2 - Code of Ethics
Public sector requirement

Internal Auditors in UK public sector organisations (as set out in the Applicability
Section) must conform to the Code of Ethics as set out below. If individual Internal
Auditors have membership of another professional body then he or she must also
comply with the relevant requirements of that body. The Code of Ethics promote an
ethical and professional culture. It does not supersede or replace Internal Auditors’
own professional bodies Code of Ethics or those of employing organisations.

The purpose of The Institute of Internal Auditor's Code of Ethics is to promote an
ethical culture in the profession of Internal Auditing. A Code of Ethics is necessary and
appropriate for the profession of Internal Auditing, founded as it is on the trust placed
in its objective assurance about risk management, control and governance.

The Institute’s Code of Ethics extends beyond the definition of Internal Auditing to
include two essential components:

Components
1. Principles that are relevant to the profession and practice of Internal Auditing; and

2. Rules of Conduct that describe behaviour norms expected of Internal Auditors.

These rules are an aid to interpreting the Principles into practical applications and are
intended to guide the ethical conduct of Internal Auditors.

The Code of Ethics provides guidance to Internal Auditors serving others. ‘Internal
Auditors’ refers to Institute members and those who provide Internal Auditing services
within the definition of Internal Auditing.

Applicability and Enforcement

This Code of Ethics applies to both individuals and entities that provide Internal
Auditing services. For Institute members, breaches of the Code of Ethics will be
evaluated and administered according to The Institute’s Disciplinary Procedures. The
fact that a particular conduct is not mentioned in the Rules of Conduct does not prevent
it from being unacceptable or discreditable and therefore, the member liable to
disciplinary action.

Public sector interpretation

The ‘Institute’ here refers to the Institute of Internal Auditors. Disciplinary procedures
of other professional bodies and employing organisations may apply to breaches of
this Code of Ethics.

Page 80



1.3

1.4

2.1

2.2

2.3

Integrity

Principle
The integrity of Internal Auditors establishes trust and thus provides the basis
for reliance on their judgement.

Rules of Conduct

Internal Auditors:

Shall perform their work with honesty, diligence and responsibility.

Shall observe the law and make disclosures expected by the law and the
profession.

Shall not knowingly be a party to any illegal activity, or engage in acts that are
discreditable to the profession of Internal Auditing or to the organisation.

Shall respect and contribute to the legitimate and ethical objectives of the
organisation.

Objectivity

Principle

Internal Auditors exhibit the highest level of professional objectivity in gathering,
evaluating and communicating information about the activity or process being
examined.

Internal Auditors make a balanced assessment of all the relevant circumstances
and are not unduly influenced by their own interests or by others in forming
Jjudgements.

Rules of Conduct

Internal Auditors:

Shall not participate in any activity or relationship that may impair or be
presumed to impair their unbiased assessment. This participation includes
those activities or relationships that may be in conflict with the interests of the
organisation.

Shall not accept anything that may impair or be presumed to impair their
professional judgement.

Shall disclose all material facts known to them that, if not disclosed, may distort
the reporting of activities under review.

Confidentiality

Principle

Internal Auditors respect the value and ownership of information they receive
and do not disclose information without appropriate authority unless there is a
legal or professional obligation to do so.

Page 81



3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

Rules of Conduct

Internal Auditors:

Shall be prudent in the use and protection of information acquired in the course
of their duties.

Shall not use information for any personal gain or in any manner that would be
contrary to the law or detrimental to the legitimate and ethical objectives of the
organisation.

Competency

Principle
Internal Auditors apply the knowledge, skills and experience needed in the
performance of Internal Auditing services.

Rules of Conduct

Internal Auditors:

Shall engage only in those services for which they have the necessary
knowledge, skills and experience.

Shall perform Internal Auditing services in accordance with the International
Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.

Shall continually improve their proficiency, effectiveness and quality of their
services.

Page 82



Annex 3 — Additional Requirements

In addition to the Code of Ethics staff must comply with the Seven Principles of
Public Life and Rhondda Cynon Taf Council’s Code of Corporate Governance.

The Seven Principles of Public Life (also known as the Nolan Principles) apply to
anyone who works as a public office-holder. This includes all those who are elected
or appointed to public office, nationally and locally, and all people appointed to
work in the Civil Service, local government, the police, courts and probation
services, non-departmental public bodies (NDPBs), and in the health, education,
social and care services. All public office-holders are both servants of the public
and stewards of public resources. The principles also apply to all those in
other sectors delivering public services.

1.1 Selflessness
Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest.

1.2 Integrity

Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to people
or organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work. They
should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material benefits for
themselves, their family, or their friends. They must declare and resolve any interests
and relationships.

1.3 Objectivity
Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit,
using the best evidence and without discrimination or bias.

1.4 Accountability
Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions
and must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this.

1.5 Openness

Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent
manner. Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear
and lawful reasons for so doing.

1.6 Honesty
Holders of public office should be truthful.

1.7 Leadership

Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour and
treat others with respect. They should actively promote and robustly support the
principles and challenge poor behaviour wherever it occurs.

More information is available via this link:
www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life/the-7-principles-
of-public-life--2

Page 83


http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life/the-7-principles-of-public-life--2
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life/the-7-principles-of-public-life--2

Rhondda Cynon Taf Council - Code of Corporate Governance

Staff also need to be aware of and comply with the Council’s Code of Corporate
Governance. Below is a link to the document:

https://www.rctcbe.gov.uk/EN/Council/Governance/RelatedDocuments/LocalCodeof
CorporateGovernance.pdf

Page 84


https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Governance/RelatedDocuments/LocalCodeofCorporateGovernance.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Governance/RelatedDocuments/LocalCodeofCorporateGovernance.pdf

Agenda Iltem 8

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2023/24

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
AGENDA ITEM NO. 8
29t April 2024

REPORT OF THE DEPUTY CHIEF DRAFT RISK BASED INTERNAL
EXECUTIVE AND GROUP DIRECTOR - AUDIT PLAN 2024/25
FINANCE, DIGITAL AND FRONTLINE
SERVICES

Author(s): Marc Crumbie & Lisa Cumpston

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT
1.1 To provide Members of the Governance and Audit Committee with the draft
Risk Based Internal Audit Plan for 2024/25.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS
2.1 It is recommended that Members approve the Risk Based Internal Audit Plan
for 2024/25 (Appendix A).

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1  To keep the Governance and Audit Committee informed and to approve the
draft Risk Based Internal Audit Plan for 2024/25 in conformance with the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and the Committee’s Terms of
Reference.

4. BACKGROUND

4.1  The United Kingdom Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (Performance
Standard ‘2010 Planning’) provides the framework within which an audit plan
should be compiled.

4.2 In line with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards the Head of Internal
Audit must establish a risk-based plan to determine the priorities of the
internal audit activity, consistent with the organisation’s goals.

4.3 Internal Audit’s Charter provides the methodology by which the annual plan is
compiled.

Page 85



4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

Information and areas taken into account when compiling the draft Risk Based
Internal Audit Plan are:

Strategic Risk Register.

Corporate Plan.

Core Financial Systems.

Service Delivery Plans and Service Self Evaluations.

Results of discussions with the Senior Leadership Team, including the
Chief Executive, Section 151 Officer and other senior officers as
necessary.

Grant Claims that require Internal Audit certification.

Follow-up reviews requested by the Governance & Audit Committee.

Audit reviews carried forward from the previous audit plan.
Recommendations from External Inspectors / Regulators,

Whilst the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require a risk-based audit
plan (achieved via taking into account the Strategic Risk Register & Corporate
Plan, along with discussions with relevant Officers to target resources), the
Standards also require an audit plan to cover the Council’s overall control
environment as far as practicable. By taking into account the sources of
information noted in 4.4 above, this supports Internal Audit (and the
Governance & Audit Committee) to achieve the following:

e Conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards in compiling
the draft Risk Based Internal Audit Plan for 2024/25.

e Enabling Governance & Audit Committee to monitor the adequacy of the
risk management framework and the associated control environment of
the Council for 2024/25 based on the audit reviews set out in the draft
Risk Based Internal Audit Plan.

e Enables Internal Audit to form an opinion on the overall control
environment for 2024/25 (presented as the Head of Internal Audit’s
Annual Opinion).

To ensure the Internal Audit Service has sufficient resources available to
provide the necessary assurance, an Audit Needs Assessment was
undertaken in consultation with the Council’s Section 151 Officer as required
by section 2030 Resource Management’ of the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards. The outcome of this exercise has confirmed the Internal Audit
Service will have adequate resources available during the forthcoming
financial year to deliver an end-of-year audit opinion. A summary setting out
how the total number of auditor days available has been calculated is
provided at Appendix B. Appendices C and D show how and where these
days are proposed to be allocated.

The draft Risk Based Internal Audit Plan contains 10 reviews that are
proposed to be carried forward from the 2023/24 Audit Plan and these have
been highlighted with the ‘C/F’ prefix within Appendix A, for ease for
reference.

Page 86



4.8

4.9

9.2

10.

10.1

10.2

11.

The draft Risk Based Internal Audit Plan is flexible to allow for changing
circumstances and events that may occur, such as requests to respond to
new issues that may arise.

The draft Risk Based Internal Audit Plan is attached at Appendix A and
provides information that shows the ‘source’ from where the audit originated.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS AND_ SOCIO-ECONOMIC
DUTY

There are no equality and diversity or socio-economic duty implications as a
result of the recommendations set out in the report.

CONSULTATION
There are no consultation implications as a result of the recommendations set
out in the report.

WELSH LANGUAGE
There are no Welsh language implications as a result of the recommendations
set out in the report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)
There are no financial implications as a result of the recommendations set out
in the report.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED

The provision of an adequate and effective Internal Audit function is a legal
requirement under the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2018 as
amended from time to time.

Regulation 7 (Internal Audit) of Part 3 of the 2018 Regulations directs that: “A
relevant body must maintain an adequate and effective system of internal
audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal control.”

LINKS TO CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE
WELLBEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT THE COUNCIL’'S
CORPORATE PLAN PRIORITIES

The work undertaken by the Internal Audit Service will help to ensure that the
appropriate internal controls are in place to effectively manage resources and
deliver the Council’s Corporate plan.

The wellbeing goals identified in the Future Generations Act were considered
in the preparation of this report. The Sustainable Development Principle, in
particular Prevention, can be applied to the systematic reviews undertaken in
order to provide assurance that risks to the achievement of objectives are
being managed.

CONCLUSION

Page 87



11.1

11.2

11.3

The draft Risk Based Internal Audit Plan 2024/25 has been compiled in
conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and the Audit
Charter.

The outcome of the Audit Needs Assessment, undertaken in consultation with
the Council’s S151 Officer, has confirmed the Internal Audit Service will have
adequate resources available during the forthcoming financial year to deliver
an annual audit opinion for 2024/25.

The Council’'s Governance & Audit Committee, in line with its Terms of
Reference, are requested to review the draft Risk Based Internal Audit Plan
for 2024/25 and, if deemed appropriate, approve it for delivery during the
forthcoming financial year.

Page 88



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972
AS AMENDED BY
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE
29th APRIL 2024
ITEM NO. 8
DRAFT RISK BASED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2024/25

REPORT OF THE DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND GROUP DIRECTOR -
FINANCE, DIGITAL AND FRONTLINE SERVICES

Author(s):
Marc Crumbie & Lisa Cumpston

Page 89



06 abed

APPENDIX A — DRAFT RISK BASED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2024/25

OUTLINE SCOPE

RISK/
PRIORITY

DAYS

TYPE OF WORK

SOURCE FROM WHICH THE
AUDIT HAS BEEN
IDENTIFIED / REASON FOR
INCLUSION

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

HUMAN RESOURCES

PURCHASE CARD

To undertake a review of the Council's Purchase Card expenditure paying particular attention to areas of
high total spend, significant numbers of transactions and provide assurance to Management on the

HIGH

20

ASSURANCE

CORE FINANCIAL SYSTEM

EXPENDITURE C/F -
controls in place.
To review the process in place for the notification of leavers by schools and service areas to Human
LEAVERS NOTIFICATION Resources and the arrangements in place for providing Payroll and ICT with updated information to allow HIGH 15 ASSURANCE OVERALL CONTROL
PROCESSES . - - ENVIRONMENT
for the closure of email and access to accounts and return of Council equipment
To review the accuracy, timeliness of recording and reporting of sickness absence information, and ensure
ATTENDANCE & SICKNESS that processes are compliant with Council Policy and are being consistently followed. This review will also HIGH 20 ASSURANCE OVERALL CONTROL
RECORDING C/F examine the arrangements in place across the Council for training and awareness raising of new HR ENVIRONMENT
Policies and the mechanisms in place for signposting staff and managers to Council guidance
To review the Procurement information system including access requirements, access security controls
and administrator accounts. This review will establish the process for evidencing tenders received and OVERALL CONTROL
PROCUREMENT REVIEW timelines of receipt on the system, and establish how evidence of changes made are logged/reported as HIGH 10 ASSURANCE ENVIRONMENT
assurance to management that the robustness of the system supports and evidences the tendering process
PAYROLL (ITRENT) To undertake a review of the Payroll system and provide assurance to Management on the controls in place HIGH 15 ASSURANCE CORE FINANCIAL SYSTEM
CORPORATE ESTATES
ASSET MANAGEMENT & To review the new draft Corporate Asset Management Plan and provide Management assurance prior to its CORPORATE PLAN
CORPORATE ASSET resentation to the Senior Leadership Team and approval by the relevant Committee HIGH 15 ASSURANCE PRIORITY
MANAGEMENT PLAN C/F P P PP y
CARBON NEUTRAL To review the.Councﬂ s Carbon Reduction Strategy and ensure that the outlined approach is aligned to HIGH 15 ASSURANCE CORPORATE PLAN
national requirements PRIORITY
PROSPERITY & DEVELOPMENT
To ensure that any external funding is being spent in compliance with the specific criteria as well as in OVERALL CONTROL
SHARED PROSPERITY FUND compliance with the Council’s Financial & Contract Procedure Rules HIGH 20 ASSURANCE ENVIRONMENT
LEGAL SERVICES
INSURANCE To prov!de assurance that there is a .mechanlsm in place to include any additions and removals to allow the HIGH 15 ASSURANCE OVERALL CONTROL
level of insurance cover across Service Areas to be accurately assessed. ENVIRONMENT
TOTAL DAYS: CHIEF EXECUTIVE 145
A ) A 8 RO R
FRONTLINE SERVICES
. . . e v 1 OVERALL CONTROL
FLEET MANAGEMENT C/F To review compliance with the Council's 'O’ license. HIGH 15 ASSURANCE ENVIRONMENT
To review the operational and reporting arrangements in place for use of the weighbridge at Council depots
WEIGHBRIDGE - . - - - OVERALL CONTROL
ARRANGEMENTS and provide assurance to management that the process is working appropriately and weight/loads are HIGH 15 ASSURANCE ENVIRONMENT
adequately monitored
TRADE WASTE To review the uppact to the Council on the new legislative change§ in Wales that r_nz_andate all workplaces to HIGH 15 ASSURANCE STRATEGIC RISK
separate recycling from general waste and review the procedures in place to administer the new process REGISTER
HIGHWAYS TRANSFER OF To undertake a follow up review and provide assurance that all recommendations contained within the
WASTE - FOLLOW UP previous audit report have been fully implemented HIGH 10 ASSURANCE FOLLOW UP
INFRASTRUCTURE ASSET
MANAGEMENT - TIP & CULVERT | To review the inspection process and provide assurance that inspections are undertaken in a timely HIGH 20 ASSURANCE STRATEGIC RISK
SAFETY INSPECTIONS & manner and in accordance with agreed timescales and statutory requirements REGISTER
REPORTING
FUEL USAGE, CONTROL & The controls surrounding the purchase, storage, access, issue and recharging of fuel at Council Depots are HIGH 15 ASSURANCE ANTI-FRAUD, BRIBERY &
MONITORING robust and consumption is appropriately controlled by Service Managers CORRUPTION
FINANCE & DIGITAL SERVICES
ICT AUDIT In c9nsultatlon with IC'I_', system_rewews V\.Ill! bfa undertaken across Dlrgctorates to ensure robust controls HIGH 20 ASSURANCE STRATEGIC RISK
are in place and operating effectively to minimise the threat of cyber crime REGISTER
GENERAL LEDGER / MAIN A review of the core financial system. HIGH 15 ASSURANCE CORE FINANCIAL SYSTEM




T6 abed

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM

To undertake a review of the Taxation (VAT) system and provide assurance to Management of the controls

TAXATION (VAT) in place HIGH 15 ASSURANCE CORE FINANCIAL SYSTEM
PENSIONS ':)':)ag:dertake a review of the Pensions system and provide assurance to Management of the controls in HIGH 15 ASSURANCE CORE FINANCIAL SYSTEM
TOTAL DAYS: FINANCE, DIGITAL & FRONTLINE SERVICES 155
O A X
To undertake a review of the process from First Response to Single Point of Access and assess the OVERALL CONTROL
SINGLE POINT OF ACCESS C/F operational arrangements in place. Also provide assurance that information and advice is readily available HIGH 20 ASSURANCE
- . . . ENVIRONMENT
through the Council's website and signposting
ADULT CARE & SUPPORT To review the arrangements for waiting lists, referrals, duty, long term planning and reporting arrangements HIGH 20 ASSURANCE STRATEGIC RISK
SERVICES C/F in respect of Adult Care and Support Services and assess the impact of the service remodelling REGISTER
SPECIALIST PLACEMENTS - To undertake a review of the process in place for the specialist placement of adults including placement HIGH 15 ASSURANCE OVERALL CONTROL
ADULTS allocation, partner contribution arrangements and the value for money arrangements ENVIRONMENT
CONTRACT MANAGEMENT To undertake a review of the controls and process in place in respect of Contract Management Placements HIGH 20 ASSURANCE OVERALL CONTROL
PLACEMENTS and provide assurance to Management that these are effective and subject to regular review ENVIRONMENT
WELSH COMMUNITY CARE To review the governance arrangements for the replacement of the WCCIS system and provide assurance HIGH 2 CONSULTANCY OVERALL CONTROL
INFORMATION SYSTEM that due process has been followed for the introduction and project management of a new system ENVIRONMENT
. To review the process in place for referrals to Children's Social Care and the arrangements in place for
REFERRALS TO CHILDREN'S PR P . - OVERALL CONTROL
SOCIAL CARE C/F management of the prioritisation of referrals, assessment of need, waiting lists and escalation/reporting HIGH 20 ASSURANCE ENVIRONMENT
arrangements
TOTAL DAYS: SOCIAL SERVICES 97
PUB A PRO C O R
To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control, governance and risk OVERALL CONTROL
LLWYDCOED CREMATORIUM management arrangements in place. This annual review also informs the Annual Governance Statement LOW 10 ASSURANCE
e - ENVIRONMENT
and certification of the Small Bodies Return
To verify that appropriate controls are in place for the collection, recording and reconciliation of online
LEISURE SERVICES - INCOME collections and physical cash received. This review will verify that all income is collected and recorded MEDIUM 20 ASSURANCE OVERALL CONTROL
COLLECTION correctly, reconciled to bookings and the controls surrounding the raising of invoices for block bookings ENVIRONMENT
are robust
To provide assurance that the processes in place for the allocation, recording, monitoring, reconciliation
USE OF TEMPORARY and review of the use of temporary accommodation are robust, voids are appropriately managed and that HIGH 20 ASSURANCE STRATEGIC RISK
ACCOMMODATION . . - REGISTER
value for money is obtained for ongoing long term placements
TOTAL DAYS: PUBLIC HEALTH, PROTECTION & COMMUNITY SERVICES 50
DUCATION & 0 R
GRANT CERTIFICATIONS
RCT - REGIONAL CONSORTIA o - S . . i
SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT GRANT Under the conditions of the specm_c grant determination, the Head of Audit must certify that the conditions HIGH 10 ASSURANCE GRANT CERTIFICATION
(RCSIG) of the grant have been complied with
ATTENDANCE & WELLBEING SERVICE
ATTENDANCE & EXCLUSIONS To select a sample of schools and provide assurance that the Council's Policy in respect of attendance and STRATEGIC RISK
- : . HIGH 15 ASSURANCE
C/IF exclusions is being followed REGISTER
21ST CENTURY SCHOOLS, TRANSFORMATION & DATA
To provide assurance that accurate processes are in place for the identification of a free school meal
FREE SCHOOL MEALS according to whether it is a 'true' meal or transitionally protected. This assurance is required as the correct MEDIUM 10 ASSURANCE OVERALL CONTROL
RECORDING IN SCHOOLS e ! ENVIRONMENT
classification impacts the revenue support grant, pupil development grant and other processes
INCLUSION SERVICE
ADDITIONAL LEARNING NEEDS
- IMPLEMENTATION OF THE To provide assurance that effective arrangements are in place to monitor and evaluate additional learning HIGH 15 ASSURANCE OVERALL CONTROL
REDUCED TIMETABLE POLICY needs services, with specific reference to the implementation of the Reduced Timetable Policy ENVIRONMENT
CIF
SPECIAL SCHOOLS
SPECIAL SCHOOL SELF . . . .
ASSESSMENT PROGRAMME & I;;tsif‘uetzr:hl:ap:;tfe:szzlsfsa;:ﬁsr:l:::st:olklt to schools and collate information/prepare the annual report MEDIUM 5 ASSURANCE OVEEEGLRIE)ﬁagLBrOL
ANNUAL REPORT 9 P
PRIMARY SCHOOLS
YGG BRONLLWYN To provide assurance on the_ adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control, governance and risk MEDIUM 6 ASSURANCE OVERALL CONTROL
management arrangements in place at the school ENVIRONMENT
YGG CASTELLAU To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control, governance and risk MEDIUM ASSURANCE OVERALL CONTROL




26 abed

management arrangements in place at the school

ENVIRONMENT

YGG LLANTRISANT To provide assurance on the. adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control, governance and risk MEDIUM 6 ASSURANCE OVERALL CONTROL
management arrangements in place at the school ENVIRONMENT
ST MICHAEL'S RC PRIMARY To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control, governance and risk MEDIUM 6 ASSURANCE OVERALL CONTROL
SCHOOL management arrangements in place at the school ENVIRONMENT
TON PENTRE INFANTS SCHOOL To provide assurance on the_ adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control, governance and risk MEDIUM 6 ASSURANCE OVERALL CONTROL
management arrangements in place at the school ENVIRONMENT
ABERDARE TOWN CHURCH IN To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control, governance and risk MEDIUM 6 ASSURANCE OVERALL CONTROL
WALES PRIMARY SCHOOL management arrangements in place at the school ENVIRONMENT
CWMCLYDACH PRIMARY To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control, governance and risk MEDIUM 6 ASSURANCE OVERALL CONTROL
SCHOOL management arrangements in place at the school ENVIRONMENT
DARRAN PARK PRIMARY To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control, governance and risk MEDIUM 6 ASSURANCE OVERALL CONTROL
SCHOOL management arrangements in place at the school ENVIRONMENT
LLWYDCOED PRIMARY SCHOOL To provide assurance on the: adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control, governance and risk MEDIUM 6 ASSURANCE OVERALL CONTROL
management arrangements in place at the school ENVIRONMENT
OUR LADY'S RC PRIMARY To provide assurance on the: adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control, governance and risk MEDIUM 6 ASSURANCE OVERALL CONTROL
management arrangements in place at the school ENVIRONMENT
PRIMARY SCHOOL SELF . . . .
ASSESSMENT PROGRAMME & :’;;i?‘uetsrtlhl:epg;tfe:szigsa;setra:sT()e::st:olklt to schools and collate information/prepare the annual report MEDIUM 10 ASSURANCE OVSEG;IBE;)AEL?OL
ANNUAL & REPORT 9 P
SECONDARY / ALL THROUGH SCHOOLS
ST JOHN BAPTIST CHURCH IN To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control, governance and risk HIGH 20 ASSURANCE OVERALL CONTROL
WALES SCHOOL C/F management arrangements in place at the school ENVIRONMENT
PORTH COMMUNITY SCHOOL To provide assurance on the. adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control, governance and risk HIGH 20 ASSURANCE OVERALL CONTROL
management arrangements in place at the school ENVIRONMENT
CARDINAL NEWMAN RC To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control, governance and risk HIGH 20 ASSURANCE OVERALL CONTROL
SCHOOL management arrangements in place at the school ENVIRONMENT
YSGOL GYFUN RHYDYWAUN - To u_ndertake_a follow up review and prowde assurance that all recommendations contained within the HIGH 10 ASSURANCE FOLLOW UP
FOLLOW UP previous audit report have been fully implemented
SECONDARY / ALL THROUGH
SCHOOL SELF ASSESSMENT To issue an updated self assessment toolkit to schools and collate information/prepare the annual report MEDIUM 10 ASSURANCE OVERALL CONTROL
PROGRAMME & ANNUAL relating to the self assessment process ENVIRONMENT
REPORT
TOTAL DAYS: EDUCATION & INCLUSION SERVICES 205
R(O) () A DR ARRA
To provide assurance over the Council's emergency planning and horizon scanning processes in place and
EMERGENCY PLANNING establish how prepared the Council is in respect of issues that could potentially arise relating to supply HIGH 10 ASSURANCE OVERALL CONTROL
ARRANGEMENTS . - . . ENVIRONMENT
chains, fuel shortages, energy costs etc. Assurance on the ongoing monitoring arrangements in place
égg;&ﬁrlleDNBCw:BERY & To undertake proactive work at the request of Management in respect of anti fraud, bribery & corruption HIGH 15 CONSULTANCY | FRAUD RISK ASSESSMENT
The Council’s Safeguarding Policy sets out the Council’s duty and commitment to safeguard adults and OVERALL CONTROL
CORPORATE SAFEGUARDING children at risk and aims to ensure that effective practices are in place throughout the Council and its HIGH 2 CONSULTANCY
s . . - - . - . ENVIRONMENT
commissioned services. This review will focus on compliance of the statutory legislation
SECURITY & ACCESS TO To undertake a review of the Council's arrangements for the security and access to Council buildings and HIGH 15 ASSURANCE OVERALL CONTROL
COUNCIL BUILDINGS provide assurance that robust controls are in place ENVIRONMENT
STRATEGIC RISKS To select a sample of strategic risks and provide assurance on how these are being managed HIGH 15 ASSURANCE RISK MANAGEMENT
P 9 P g ged. ARRANGEMENTS
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS To seleqt a _sample qf Performance Indicators and provide assurance on the accuracy and integrity of HIGH 20 ASSURANCE CORPORATE PLAN
supporting information PRIORITY
TOTAL DAYS FOR CROSS CUTTING / WHOLE AUTHORITY ARRANGEMENTS 77
RA O U OR O ) A O N
CSC - REGIONAL CONSORTIA o - o . . .
SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT GRANT Under the conditions of the spemfl_c grant determination, the Head of Audit must certify that the conditions HIGH 10 ASSURANCE GRANT CERTIFICATION
(RSIG) of the grant have been complied with
CSC - RSIG - CONSOLIDATED Under the conditions of the specifi_c grant determination, the Head of Audit must certify that the conditions HIGH 5 ASSURANCE GRANT CERTIFICATION
STATEMENT of the grant have been complied with
CSC - PUPIL DEVELOPMENT Under the conditions of the specm_c grant determination, the Head of Audit must certify that the conditions HIGH 10 ASSURANCE GRANT CERTIFICATION
GRANT (PDG) of the grant have been complied with
CSC - PDG - CONSOLIDATED Under the conditions of the specific grant determination, the Head of Audit must certify that the conditions HIGH 5 ASSURANCE GRANT CERTIFICATION




cp abed

STATEMENT | of the grant have been complied with | |
TOTAL DAYS CENTRAL SOUTH CONSORTIUM 30
SOUTH EAST WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE (SEWCJC)
RISK MANAGEMENT To review the RIS.k Management Strategy and operational arrangements in place for monitoring and HIGH 20 CONSULTANCY RISK MANAGEMENT
reporting strategic risks
To review the process for monitoring investments. The scope of this review will include reviewing the
guidelines in place, ensure staff receive appropriate training/guidance, the format of information is OVERALL CONTROL
INVESTMENTS appropriate and includes key indicators, processes are in place to identify, manage and escalate concerns HIGH 20 ASSURANCE ENVIRONMENT
and areas for improvement are considered
ICT / CYBER SECURITY To review the practices and policies in place within the Corporate Joint Committee and provide assurance HIGH 10 ASSURANCE OVERALL CONTROL
ARRANGEMENTS that these help maintain a resilient cyber security environment ENVIRONMENT
REGISTER OF BUSINESS To undertake a review the Register of Business Interests and provide assurance that this is accurate, up to OVERALL CONTROL
INTERESTS / GIFTS & date and includes all key individuals. This review will also examine the procedures and policies in respect HIGH 15 ASSURANCE ENVIRONMENT
HOSPITALITY of gifts and hospitality to provide assurance that clear and transparent processes are in place
To review and conclude on the adequacy and effectiveness of the controls in operation in respect of the OVERALL CONTROL
CREDITORS Corporate Joint Committee Creditors function MEDIUM 5 ASSURANCE ENVIRONMENT
To review and conclude on the adequacy and effectiveness of the controls in operation in respect of the OVERALL CONTROL
DEBTORS Corporate Joint Committee Debtors function MEDIUM 5 ASSURANCE ENVIRONMENT
BANK RECONCILIATION :I'o undertake a review of the Bank_ Reconciliation process and pro_wde assurance to Management of the MEDIUM 5 ASSURANCE OVERALL CONTROL
internal control, governance and risk management arrangements in place. ENVIRONMENT
ANNUAL OPINION REPORT (HIA) | INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTING N/A 5
AUDIT CHARTER & MANUAL INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTING N/A 2
AUDIT PLANNING INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTING N/A 2
AUDIT WALES LIAISON INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTING N/A 1
GOVERNANCE & AUDIT
COMMITTEE INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTING N/A 6
RECOMMENDATION
MONITORING INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTING N/A 2
TOTAL DAYS SOUTH EAST WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE 98
AMGEN - PAYROLL To review and concll_Jde on the adequacy and effectiveness of the controls in operation in respect of the MEDIUM 5 ASSURANCE CORE FINANCIAL SYSTEM
Amgen Payroll function
AMGEN - DEBTORS To review and conclusie on the adequacy and effectiveness of the controls in operation in respect of the MEDIUM 5 ASSURANCE CORE FINANCIAL SYSTEM
Amgen Debtors function
AMGEN - CREDITORS To review an_d concludt_e on the adequacy and effectiveness of the controls in operation in respect of the MEDIUM 5 ASSURANCE CORE FINANCIAL SYSTEM
Amgen Creditors function
AMGEN - GENERAL LEDGER To review and conclude on tr]e adequacy and effectiveness of the controls in operation in respect of the MEDIUM 5 ASSURANCE CORE FINANCIAL SYSTEM
Amgen General Ledger function
TOTAL DAYS - AMGEN 20




76 abed

APPENDIX B - NUMBER OF PRODUCTIVE DAYS AVAILABLE

Days . . . .
Total days| Available Full Time | Actual Annual Leave Bank Total Days Available Sickness Prndur:twe Prnductwe
Available Less or Part Days Entitlement | Holidays Less Annual Leave & Contingenc Time to be Time to be
Time | Available y Bank Holidays 98NS | Allocated | Allocated
Weekends
Audit Manager 365 261 FT 261 33 8 220 3 217 217
Senior Auditor 365 261 FT 261 33 8 220 3 217 217
Senior Auditor 365 261 FT 261 33 8 220 3 217 217
Auditor 365 261 FT 261 33 8 220 3 217 217
Auditor 365 261 FT 261 33 8 220 3 217 109
Graduate Auditor 365 261 FT 261 26 8 227 3 224 112
1089

* Auditor — estimated productive days for the year
** Graduate, assumed to be in place September 2024 onwards.



APPENDIX C — TIME NOT ALLOCATED TO EACH GROUP / DIRECTORATE

INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGEMENT, SUPERVISION & REPORTING

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 10
ANNUAL OPINION REPORT (HIA) 10
AUDIT CHARTER & MANUAL 5
GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE 20
AUDIT PLANNING 20
CLOSURE OF REPORTS FROM 23/24 10
RECOMMENDATION MONITORING 12
AUDIT WALES LIAISON 5
CONTINGENCY FOR UNPLANNED WORK / EMERGING RISKS / SPECIAL 50
INVESTIGATIONS

ADVICE & GUIDANCE 12
PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS (PSIAS) COMPLIANCE 5
DATA ANALYTICS 5
STAFF APPRAISALS / PDPs 5
MEETINGS / OFFICE ADMINISTRATION 12
MANAGEMENT & SUPERVISION 10
QUALITY & ASSURANCE MONITORING 6
STAFF DEVELOPMENT, ENGAGEMENT AND TRAINING 15

TOTAL DAYS - INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTING 212

Page 95



APPENDIX D - SUMMARY OF ‘AUDIT’ DAYS ALLOCATED TO EACH AREA OF
BUSINESS

OVERALL SUMMARY Days

CROSS CUTTING / WHOLE AUTHORITY ARRANGEMENTS 77
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 145
SOCIAL SERVICES 97
PUBLIC HEALTH, PROTECTION & COMMUNITY SERVICES 50
FINANCE, DIGITAL & FRONTLINE SERVICES 155
EDUCATION & INCLUSION SERVICES (INCLUDING SCHOOLS) 205
SOUTH EAST WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE 98
CENTRAL SOUTH CONSORTIUM JOINT EDUCATION SERVICE 30
AMGEN 20
INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTING 212
TOTAL PRODUCTIVE DAYS (PLANNED FOR) 1089
TOTAL AVAILABLE DAYS 1089

Page 96



Agenda Iltem 10

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Audit Wales - Annual Audit Summary 2023
	4 Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable (Quarterly Update to 31 March 2024)
	5 Council Progress Update - Implementation of Recommendations reported within the Audit Wales Annual Audit Summary 2023
	Appendix 1

	6 Whistleblowing Annual Report 2023/24
	Background Papers

	7 Internal Audit Charter 2024/25
	1.	Purpose, Authority and Responsibility (Standard 1000)
	2.	Independence and Objectivity (Standard 1100)
	Section 151 Officer
	3.	Proficiency and Due Professional Care (standard 1200)
	Resources and Proficiency
	Relationships
	4. 	Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (Standard 1300)
	Internal Assessment
	External Assessment
	Charter
	Chief Audit Executive
	Code of Ethics
	Compliance
	Conflict of Interest
	Control
	Control Environment
	Fraud
	Governance
	Independence
	Internal Auditing
	Overall Opinion
	Risk
	Risk Management
	Public sector requirement
	Components
	Applicability and Enforcement
	Public sector interpretation
	1. 	Integrity
	2. 	Objectivity
	3.	Confidentiality
	4.  	Competency

	8 Internal Audit Plan 2024/25
	10 Anti-Fraud Annual Report 2023/24

